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same leaflet:§ and also,in-the third count; thereis's
charge of -publishing | another - leaflct, i;glso - the
Liberajary 'on Decomber 19. - This leoflet ' (holding
it up to the jury) is called: ! The Liberafor, . an. Intirs

{mational journal devoted to the extension of the
Republic, Volume 1., No. 9, Paris, Novémber, 1810, ]

A CRIMINAL LIBEL ON THE
' - SOVEREIGN. |

VERDICT "AND SEXNTENCE.

The case of The King versus E. F. Mylius was
opened and concluded yesterday in the King's
Bench Division of the High Court of Justice
before the Lord Chief Justice and & Special
Jury. . _

The defendant, Edward F. Mylius, was charged

on the information of the Attorney-General |
with having published a.libel of and concerning |

the King. The libel had appeared in a Repub-
lican leaflet or paper known as the Liberator,
which was printed in Paris. The hearing of the
case aroused much interest, and the Court was
crowded. Among those who attended were the
Home Secretary (Mr. Winston Churchill) and

the Director of Public Prosecutions (Sir Charles !
Mathews). . !
{  wife George Frederick .foully abandoned his true

The Attorney-General (Sir Rufus Isazes, E.C.),
the Solicitor-General (Sir J. Simon, K.C.), Mr. R. D-

Muir, and Mr. S. A. T. Rowlatt appeared to pmse-'

You will abserve before 1 read the libel to 'you that
the ZLiberator- is not printed in this ‘country, and;
of course, for a very good reason. Those who desired
to circulate these statements had taken care to have
them printed in Paris, whence they were despatched
to this country {0 the defendant Mylius, and. by hxgx
were posted, circulated, and distributed. throughout
the country. It is stated to be published manthly

by Edward Holden James, 20, Rue St. Dominique; {

IrPa.ris. _ ga
| and the passages complained of are these ;= . -0

During: the year 1880, in the-island of Malts,

L

of Sir Michsel Culme- Seymotr, an Admiral of the
British Navy. Of this marriage offspring were
born. A¢$ the time of that marriage the 'DPuke of

| Clarence, the eldest brother of the present King,
| was Heir to the Throne: - Subsequently the Duke

of Clarence died, leaving the present King Heir

| to the Throne. It is now that we are offered the
spectacle of the immorality of the Monarchy in.

all its sickening, beastly monstrosity.  In order to
obtain the woman of Royal blood for his pretended

wife, the daughter of Sir Michael Culme-Seymour,
of the British Navy, and entered into a sham and

cute ; the defendant, a small dark man of youthful
appearance, was not defended by counsel. He
62t In one of the seats allotted to solicitors. |

APPLICATIONS BY THE DEFENDANT.

After the jury had entered the box, buf before they
had been sworn, the Lorp CHIEF JUSTICE rematked
that the defendant had certain rights under tke
Criminal Appeal Act. Accordingly he gave in-

shameful marriage with the daughter of the Duke
of Teck in 1893.

The said George Frederick not having obtained |
.any divorce from his first wife, who, by the common

law of England and by the law of the Christian
Church, remained, and, if she lives, remaing, His
- true wife, committed the crime of bigamy, and
he committed it with the aid and complicity of

structions for a shorthand note of the proceedings

The Lorp CaHIEF JUSTICE then informed.the de-
fendant that, although he had no rights in the matter,
if there was any member of the jury to whom he
objected the juror so objected to should legve
box.

The defendant.—I desire to. make application
for the immediate restoration of my private letters,
the geizure of which on December 26 was in gross
violation of the law. | |

The Lorp Crier JusTiCE—That does not arise
now. That i3 not a matter for my consideration,
I cannot make any order now. .

The defendant.—Before the jury are sworn I wish
to ask if the King is present.

The Lorp CHIEF JUSTICE.~What do you say ?

The defendant.—1 wish to ask if the prosecmtor
Is present here, and I demand bhis presence, on the
grounds, first, that every accused person has a right
to be confronted with his accaser in Court ; secondly,
that no action for libel is usually taken without the

the

}

the prelates of the Anglican Church. This is the
sickening and. disgusting crime which has- been
committed by the English- Church; which has
married one man to btwo women. Our very
Christian King, the Defender of the Faith, has a
plarality of wives, just like any Mahomedan
. Sultan, and they are sanctified by the English
Church. The daughter of Sir Michael Culme-
Seymour, if she still lives, is by the unchangeable
law of the Christian Church, as well as by the
common law of England, the rightful Queen of

heirs to the Englisk Throne. -

In discussing this maftter by letter with om
valued and sf{eadfast friend Edward F. Mylius, of
Loondon, we have received from him the following
letter :— | |

I. have always understood that the XKing is
above the law and can do no wrong. He may
commit murder, rape, arson, or any other crime,
yet the law cannot try him. The only way he

~can be dealt with in this country is by revolution.

prosecutor being in Court, where the jury can see
him ; and thirdly, thai there is no proof that the
prosecutar is af: present alive.

The Lorp CHIEF JUSTICE.-——This has already been
the sabject of an application before me. You are |

I A

No one can properly speak of the King acting
legally or illegally. We only speak of him acting
unconstitutionally or otherwise. It seems fo 1me,
therefore, that your article must be directed at
the so-called British Constitution, which allows and

perfectly well aware that the King cannot be sum-
moned here. The King is not present.

The defendant.—I wish to take exception to your
Lordship’s ruling.

The Lorp CHIEF JUSTICE.—You bhave heard tho |

names of the jury called. Do you object to any one ?
The defendant.—I wish to ask each juryman

whether he is able to render a fair and impartinal |

verdict upon the evidence.
The Lorp CHIEF JUSTICE.—That is not a proper
question.

The jury were then sworn.

THE CHARGES AGAINST THEE DEFENDANT.

Mr. RowraTr said that the information charged
that the defendant p blished a libel of and concerning
his Majesty the King on November 29, 1910 ; a second
count charged a second publication of the same libel
on December 19, and a third count charged the publi-
cation of another libel on December 19. The defen-
dant by his plea admitted posting the alleged libe]
at Notting-hill Post Office, and said that the alleged

tolerates a bigamous King to rule over the Empire.

by the King for his subjects and slaves.”
While I have this matter before me I will read
the publication of December which contains one

short passage as offensive as it ¢an be made :—

The Daily News of Lohdpn informs us thaﬁ the |

King plans to visit India with his wife.
the newspaper kindly fell us which wife ?

THE LiBEL DENIED.
Now before I proceed further in detailing to vou

Would

| the real facts with regard to this libel, let me telli
i you ab once, as of course you will expect to hear,
| that there is not the faintest vestige of truth in|
any of these statements—that the only statement !

which is true in the whole of those wordas which I
read to you, published by this man, is the state-

| ment that his Majesty the King in 1893 married

the lady who is now her Majesty the Queen. Beyvond
that the whole story from beginning to end is a
tissue of untruths for which, as I have said, there

libels were true and that their publication was for the |
public interest.

' [ ]
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THE ATTORNEY-GENERAL,

The ATToRNEY-GENERAL, in his opening statement,
said ;—This case, as indicated to you by my friend Mr.
Rowlatt, is brought upon ar information filed by me in
my official capacity as Attorney-General for a libel
published by the defendant Kdward F. Mylius, upon |
his Majesty the King—a libel which T have no doubt,
when you hear it read, as you will in o moment or
two, you will be of opinion is a libel of a gross and
scrious character; a libel which reflected on the King,
attacked him in his honour, reflects upon him and is
intended to refleet upon him so as to lower him in the
estcem and respect of honourable and right-minded !
citizens. The information which I have filed is in
accordance with the procedure which is appropriate
according o the practice and the precedents of this
Court for a libel of this character. And it has this
advantage, that it has cpabled the defendant to
be brought belore you at an earlier date, inasmuch as
the proceedings were only started on December 26,
and notwithstanding an application for some further
time made on his behalf and granted by the Judge,
the matter comes before you for trial to-day, within
somcething hike five weeks of the commencoment of

these proceedings.

Al the outsel of ke case I want to tell you that this
Jibel is contained in the leaflets, published in Novemn-
ber and Deceraber, called the Liberalor, a journal
which is devoted to the spread-of Republican ideas
1 think the exact words used in the document itself
are :—* An international journal-devoted to.the ex-
tension of the Republic.” . And it may be that in the
course of some letters which.T shall have to read’ to
you during this frial you will find expressions here
and there in parts of what I may read to you which
are internded {0 promote Republican ideas and” are
aimed against the Monarchy. T am very ahxicu§ that
vyou should understand from the outset that in these
proceedings and in this prosecution no complaint has

is not even a shadow or vestige of any foundation.
I shall have the opportunity  of.datailing to you
facis which prove beyond eny question, beyond

any possibility of doubt, the absolute- falsity off{ e KING'S Incgr_aéxry‘m "GI“E'E-'.EVIDENGE.V

. every one of those statements. Now let me also explain to you a little of the difi--

But before 1 do so I would just like to make',plﬁin

one further fact, and that is this, that the defendant
who is befure you and who has

against him, is not a mere conduit-pipe for distri-
buting these lcaflets. He is not a person in the
position of some one who receives a parcel containing
the ILiberalor copies and then distributes them
according to order. He is the responmsible person
in this country for the publication and distribution
of this leaflet; he is the person who is in active
communication with James, who,
letters which we have, is an American residing in
Paris. This man James appears to be a man of
some means, to have had this paper printed in Paris,
and to have come into communication with the
defendant Mylius, who was then living in Loondon,
through a man named Xrishnavarma, an Indian,
living in Paris also, who apparently brought

 these two persons together. Yoéou will find from
| these letters which 1 am going to read to vou—

letters which were found at the defendant’s lodgings

when he was arrested—that they will show quite

plainly that he is the active distributor of these
journals in.this country. B |

' -* THE DEFENDANT AND THE “ LIBERATOR.”

" On January 19, 1610, James writes from Paris: to
the defendant, Mr. E. Mylius, 18, Courtnell-street,

Bayswater, London, :— , . ,
" Dear. Sirg—Your name has been given. to me

{ by Mr., Krishnavarma as being an intimate friend of
F er._ GHY Aldred.

I send you a little leaflet. which

1. bave -published, and which you may be interested

Ii_'n rea.d_mg,a.s I speal of Mr. Aldred.”

" That is "the first communication.

been. lodged bacause of the Republican sentiments ! February 13 again James writes to the defendant 1—-

and views which this gentleman and those associategd :

“ 1 have received and enjoved your letter of the

with him °n this leaflet may choose to advocate. A | 10th instant ™ —so0 you see they are in correspondence

man is{ree in this country to advocate political op'nions
—even to raisc the question of the proper form of
government for this country. He is probabhly freer.
in this country than in any counfry in the world. to
publish his views and to cicculate them ; -and so-long
as he keeps within the law, which is framed on very
broad apd gencrous lines, no complaint is made
agailnst him, bowever much you and I may differ
from every sentiment which is expressed in that
paper. But I want you quite clearly to appreciate
that this presecution is not in respect of any: observa<
tions of that character whick miay have been made in
this leaflet. | L. T
THE KING'S MARRIAGE.

]
‘This prosecution is brought because this man has

chosen to circulate in this countrv in this leaflet an’

attack upon the King, in respect of the marriage which
bhe contracted with the Queen in July, 1893. He bhas
chosen to asserl that that was a * sham and shameful
miarriage,’” that it was a bigamous marriage, that it
was an offence against the Church for the reason that
according o his statement the King had in the year
1899, while in Malta, married a daughter of an admiral,
that at that time he was not the Heir to the Throne,
but that within a short perind, namely, in 1892, as

you. will remember, the Duke of Clarence died, end in |
- consequence of that Prince George, as he then was,

became the Heir to the Thraone.

The suggestion which is made, and the staternent
deliberately made by this defendant with some knovs~
ledge of the responsibility which attaches to a person
who chooses o make such a statement, that the King,
having contracted that first marriage, and having
had offspring by that marriage, and having, in the
words of the libel, “ foully abandoned ” this lady,
he made a marriage in the year 1893 in order that he
might marry tke Princess gnder the Royal Marriages
Act, so that there might be a valid marriage, and did
not hesitate, according to the statement of this 4

fendant, to abandon the woman whom he had marsiad
in an earlier year, and, I suppose, the offspring which
it was said that she had borne—to abandop them
‘“ foully ” in onder that he might contract this bige-
mous marriage with the present Queen.

Thrre ALLEGED i IBFL.

I do pot think that I can do better at this point than
read o vou the portions of ‘this leaflet which’are dome
plained of in this information. I should tell you,
before I read if;, that there are thrée counts in this
information—in other words, that there.are three
definite and distimct charges. The first is for publica-

and in active communication—** You are extremely
kind to fake all this trouble for me. I am starting
a little monthly paper called the Liberator, similar
to Mr. Krishnavarma’s paper, the first number of
-which will be out in about & week. ¥ :shall send
you a few copies. I say that the paperisan * Inteina-
tional journal devoted to the' extension of the Re-
public.” I cannot tell just exactly where such &
programme may lead, but it seemed to me that such
an object was at least something definite, In severa)
of the European countries, such as Spain, Portugal,

l

and Belgium, there are rather active Republican
parties; more or less affiliated with Socialists, and it
seemed to me that.these different groups counld be
“brought into more friendly relations with cach other.

The time also seemed ripe in England for some kind |
of change. I therefore decided, after conversation |

with Mr. Krishnavarma, to start a little paper.”
Now on March 16 again James
defendant " | L |
“ My dear Mr. Mylius,—I shall be glad to kmow
whether or notfiyou were able to dispose of the
Liberators which I sent. If you can send me a short
article, stating your views with regard to a Republican

| Government in England and the best methods to be

employed for obtaining it, I should be glad to publish
it,” reserving, of course, vour name, mmless expressly:
authorized by you to make known vour name.” |
March 27, James to the defendant :—
“ Dear Mr. Mylius,—-Yours of the 26th to hand.
« » « I shall await with interest the article you
are sending me. It will come tQo late to be put ip
the April number, but I will keep it for the May issue.

If you will send me a list of any names of persons |
who would be likely to be interested in the Liberator,

I will send the paper to them. It might be risky for

t'yon fo ' distribute the paper yourself.”

Attached to that is a sheet of notepaper bearing
some names which I will not trouble to read to you,
Again, on Msarch 30— . | E

“ Many thanks for your article, which is just what
Iwant.'? . | '

Then the last T will trouble you with at this stage i

dated May 2 ;o ' : |

“ 1 am in regeipt of your letter of April 30, and am
glad to krow that yon. were pleased with the May
number of
ghall

-.-'.‘i_ .l-.? LI

-kind to do g0 mmuch to popularize the Liberator.” .

The. libel is headed * Sanctified Bigamy,”

the man who is now the King ‘of England . was.
united in lawful holy wedlock with the daughter.

England, and her children are the only rightful

The law is not made for the King, but supposedly

N

according to

1

Then on

fondaint - ochipied “In ‘rdferénce to the
iberatar ‘and M Jathes,’ the proprietots “Leb  mé
now polab ot ‘to ‘you thab’the chargs whish Is mide
seditious Iibel. - Tlinb, "of ' course, "I &’ well-known
offéice In thiy eulitry. “And ‘had he Heen clarged
with thab offerics the défendant ¢odld: not have et
up in avdwel to the oharge that the statements which
be had made and which wérs cotaplainéd of were true.

" t *

| 1t 15-%6 " ankwes in’ & charge of seditiuns libel for a.

détendasibto aa¥, * What I have said is tus” Toisa
défence which 18 niob open: o’ hini-—for Feasoifs which
I need .not’ discuss belore: you-——~bnt: which from &

L

ey libbls appratenaion’ of 46 mickning of seditious

]

:

that they sbhounld know who is the frue and lawial

]

I
J

libel must be appirent™€o evérybody. “In this Cadic,
gentlemen, the charge which 'is nigde, and deliberdtely
mide, £gainst-him has left open, and putposely left
opon; to him the opportunity of setling up the defence
that what he has 8iid is tris it he chose to'take tpon
him#dlf the
defence” L e - LT
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The charge againgt him is ‘of publishitig a .libel,
as distinguished from’a seditious libel, atid in dniswer
to_that it is a’ defenco under a statute well-kmown
as Lord Campbell's Act for him to bavgkald that what
be, has ‘asserted is trne; and, miorsover, that'it ‘was
for the pitblic benefit that he should 'piblish it
Now, gentlerien, the defendant, you will ses by that,
has had an” opportunity afforded to him, which
could not othetwise have beén open'to him, so that
he might, if ke could, éstablish beforé you that there

‘had been suth a marriage as he had dared to assért.
In -this case he has taken upon himself to set up this.

plea, ax it is ¥nown-in the law, of: justification, an

to assert upon the records of this Conrt that it is-trus
that thie King contracted this marriape in 1890 at
Malta. I will read to you«~becéause it is important that
you should know at an early stage-—~what the defence
is which he is asserting in this Court. He says this—
he admits posting at Notting-hill Post Office copies
of the Liberator containing the alleged libels, and he

says -thal the alleged libels are true in this—that in.

1880, at Malts, his Msajesty the King lawfully married
the daughter of Sir Michael Culme-Seymour; that
thereafter, on July 6, 1893, his Majesty bigamously
married her Majesty the Quesn ; and as to the third
count, that the sald daughter of Sir Michael Culme-
Seymour is, according to the defendant's belief, still
alive. And the defendant says® that. it was for the

public benefit that the alleged libels should be written:
becanse, first, in divérs newspapers it has been stated
that the said daughter of Sir - Michae! Culme-Seymour,

was-not the true and lawfal wife of his Majesty the

King ; and, secondly, that Sir Arthur Bigge had caused.

to be published in Reynolids’s Newspaper a statemiént
affirming that his Majesty the King had never maeried
any other person than her Majesty the Queon ; and

that in the Review of Reviews the Dean of Norwich-

had: denied the accusafion that prior to his marriage
his Majesty the King had-contracted what is called: a
secret or morganafic marringe with the danghter of
8ir Michael -CulmesSeymour,. with children by ‘it,
and had shated, * That'is absolutely, rodt and branch,
an. umt]lu" . He :B&}‘B,.:fﬂmthl?, - that: itl i3 impﬁrtr-
ant for the public welfare of the people of England.

wife of his Majesty the King. And apparcntly,
according to this-defendant, the people of England are
to learn that from a shect which is published in Paris,
which he dafe not print.and publish here, and which
is circulated throughout England by this defendant,
Edward Mylius. --As my friend, the Solicitor-General,
reminds me, he bas further said this, ¢ This the
defendant stands.ready to prove.”* Now he has made
that assertion upon the file of this Court. He has
chosen to place upon the record that plea ; the burden
of establishing it is opon him, and at some stage,
1 suppose, we shall know what material he had before
him—what basis there was for this statement which
he circulated in November and December, and what

truth there is in the statement which he. has made-

now, that he stands ready to prove it. But, gentle-
men, glthough of course beyond all question in law
the burden of proof is npon him, we .are not content
with leaving the mabter there. We do not intend to
wait until the defendant has given some evidence in
support of his plea, as we should be quite entitled
fo do according to all.the rules in thizs Court; but

i we shall at once, at the earliest opportunity afforded

us—on opportunity, 1 may say, we welcome—call
evidence before you which will utterly refute these
statements which Ii¢'hris chosen to make and circulate
and repeat in the justification on the reéord.

cculty that - might -have arisen ‘in thisicase; ‘bub for-

i

admitted the posting ! ywhich we shall
| of these leaflets, which is the publication alleged |

}
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It is first said that

tupately will not'arise on account of the evidence
put before you. Gentlemen, if a man
chooses to make false, malicious, and defamatory
statements of you or me, we can institute proceedings
and have the advantage of going into the ‘witness-
box, and giving evidence on oath before the
Judge and jury, and of refating from the witness-
box the calumnies which . bhave . been ' spread
and circulated  of us. ‘
the position of his Majesty the King. According
to the view of the law which my learned friend
and colleague, the Solicitor-General, and 1 take,
after, I need scarcely say, very caroful research and
consideration, the Sovereizgn has not the advantaze
possessed’ by every subject of the Realm—namely,
the right to vindicate his character by refuting on
oath before a Judge and jury any libellons statement
made against him, {or, by virtae of the King's position,
of his sovereignty under our Constitutior, and apart
altogether from the narrow technical legal difficulties,
he cannot go into the witness-box to testify in person
and on oath in a Court of Justice. And, moreover,

gentlemen, he cannot do s6 however much he may

wish if, because this is not a privete privilege which
the Sovereign can waive at pleasure, but is an absotute
incapacity attached to the sovereignty by the - Con-

| stitution for reasons of public policy. And I further
say this, which will not:surprise you, that there has

never been any precedent for-the calling of the King
of this country into the witness-box to testify on oath.
Well, as you will readily understand, that iz a. dis-
advantage which might conceivably in come cases
inflict hardship upon the Sovereign. But fortunately
in this case—although no doubt in the result a little

more labour and a little more time. has to6-he spent

upon the evidence-—~we are able {0 establish from other
evidence beyond al! possibility of s doubt the falsity
of these statements. Now you will, of caurse, under-
stand that this which we believe to be the law really
of the Constitution operates both for the prosecution
and for the accused. 1t is not necessary that I should
do more, at any rate at the preserit monient, in dealing
with this matter than to say .this to you—that tha

Other witnesses who will be caned before you and Whﬁ

will give you their statements, statements. directly

relévant to the mafters which -are in issue, will be

sufficient to show how utterly groundless this ‘geensas

tion which the defendant has made and has pepsisted

in is. | 2
THE ALLXGATIONS:

Iet me just call atiention to what the allegations
are, then 1 will tell you how.théy will be disproved.
, the King, when Princs George,
contracted this' marridge in 1880 at. Malta. Well,
vou will hear that he never was in Malts after the
year 1888 until some years after his marriage to her

wriles to the| Majesty the Queen. Certainly he-nevep was in Malta

Iin 1880 or at apy time approaching that - period.

i

| present -King to the  present Queen,

the. Liberater, “With your pefmission I |
cull some. sentences from it (your letter) and:
insert thom in"the next Liberalor. You are extremely

Then it-is said that he marzied a donghter of Admiral’

Sir Michael Culme-Seymonr, Now, fortunately, wye
can call before. you Admiral Sir Michael Culme-
Seymour snd his davghter, who is, as the defendant
has asserted, still living, who is a married lady,
married to an officer in the Navy, a Mrs. Napier
And also you will have the evidence of -the sons of
Sir - Michacl Oulme-Seymour. Unfortunately we
shall not be able to put- Lady Culme-Seymonr. into
the witness-box on acoount. of -her atate of health
at the present moment, but you. will have -evidence
before you from a doctor which will establish :that
the condition in which ‘she now is makes it impos-
sible for ber to  attend :the! Court. Géntlemen,
Admiral 8ir Michael -Culme-Seymour went to Malta
to take command of ‘the Fleet in the Mediterranesn

ab the end of June--he recsived his command on the

pamty &t Marlborough. House on July 8, 1893,
which is. the day before: the - wedding. of the
. .whichk took
PhCéy M“I tﬂl‘l you, Gn'--._-,"'nl? 6,. ;3935_#Hd ha.aaﬂe&
on that date. He  had: two _daughters—one, the
elder, Mrs, Napier, who will: be called before.yon ;
the other; the younger, who. died in the yeam 1895
in Malta, and who died uvmarried: +The ladies of

end of Qctober or the beginning of November,. 1893.

You.will..observe. the importance. of that.date, It

sty - , - +}is somie months after.the. present King had. married |
~ Now, gentlemen, those are letters which I have read |
tion, on November 19, 1010;. inthe mndmmbﬂ)em'to you fﬂ?_ Q?ﬁ;’ purpose of

the. present Queen. Never-'at any time was the

establishing the position| King-in. Maltf ‘when. githm of the Misses Seymour !
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respunsibility of sayltig, I havesuch a- ,. Bo_attended.
“{ Malla, and only opce in her life before the King

the Crown Advocate

witness-box’ and tell.

But that is not quite

say.”?

the Seymour family never. went to- Malta. until the
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there until'soine considerable ¢inid alter his marriaxe
to' the pressnt Queen: “The ladles of the Beymour
famlly never went to Malta until five months aftor

the mairlige of the King:to the Qoo and navir

there during ‘the whole: time that they wers thers,
and-in point of {act the one'lady, the lady who dlcw.
in: 1885, had neéver niet the King to speak to kim in.
her’life. - ~Bhe had sten him, no doubt, but slis had
never spokenr to him during the whole of her oxist.
ence.. :Mrs, Napler, the lady . .who- is :the ' lady
apparently with reference, to whom this charge_is
made, had scon hif twice before he sailed for Milta
at_the end of October of beginning' of November,
1893-—once when she wag elght years old, and another
fime when.she was & & recoption at Lord Spenter's
in February, 1893, whon she did not have an oppor-

tunity of speaking to him, though sho ‘was at the

- r

reception 'which he atténded. She ohly  spoke to

moairied the Quesn. And that is o lady with regard

t0 whom this defendant makes the ¢harge and kaa
chosen to et up ‘on the record the statement ‘which
L have read to you. ~ © v U o

.*1_

'''''

d
b Y e

- ¥n grder ot only that this defendant’s statements
may be.absolutely refuted, but that'an end may be
made of rurhours which hive been circulated vaguely
gnd indefinitely—only published with denials in
newspapers until the defendant chose to ‘circulate
this 'leaflet, the Liderator—in order to show how
ridiculous™ and how absurd: these . statements are
we havé faken the opportunity, not only in order.

that we may present the evidence to you, but to

afford the defendant an opportunity, of which he
miight not, perhaps, in bis position, have been able
to avail himself, of searching the registors of marriage
in the Island of Malta. They aré brotight here by

of Malta, who will go into the
, d tell yon thab be has made search
throughout : those - registets, -and that " not, only is
there no record of such a marriage as is alleged, but
that, 60 far &s the most careful and diligent search
has' becnt able to show, thére is no-record of any

- -+

matriage of any person with a lady of the name of |

Seymiour in those registers. . Further than that, you

ill Bave cvidencs of the Admiralty records, of the
registers and "log-books ‘of the vessels upon “which
his Majesty was serving, and they will establish what
I have already indicated to 'you. In. 1886, 1887,
and 1888 he was serving-in . one or other of her
Majesty's ships—as they then were—and that ke

‘visited at varions times with his ships the island of

Malta ; but that from 1888 the vessels upon which
he served wéte not in Malts, and be was not in Malta
until a considerable time after the date of his marriage
to the Queen, and they are

ma,tenalto the present inquiry, - . .
| A DEPANATORY INTENT. |
_Further, you will have noticed the reference which

was made by this defendant to Sir _Arthur Bigge.
e refers to him in his plea as “ one Arthur Bigge

purparting to be Private Secretary of the King.

In point of fact you will have the opportunity of
seeing Sir Arthur Bigge, who is one of his Majesty’s
Private Secretaries, and he will be called before you.
1t is quite plain, of course, from a statement made
that there did appear’in a newspaper of October 30,

1910, a most emphatic denial given by Sir Arthur:

Bigge as to rumours which had been circulated
about this alleged previous marriage. Yet, apparently
the defendant, with knowledge of that, as. appears
quite plainly from the correspondonce, and the plea,
after that date of October 30 and atter he knew the
denial was made by Sir Arthur Bigge, published these
statements which I. have already indicated to you.
I will say no more abouf that publication at the
moment. He chose to take upon himself the risk
of publishing these statements—the risk which
James, writing from Paris, had referred to. He
knew perfectly well that he was publishing & Ebellous
statement of the King, .. '

| . . THe CONTRADICTION.
When you _é:xamiﬁel » few of the letters whmh

passed at this time it will also become apparent, as
I submit, that he knew, as James knew ‘who was
-writing to him {defendant),\that the inquiry" whith-
they had made into this rumour had failed to {ivé4 onq in which it was said -

them any satisfaction or to afford any ‘evidence in

‘supp‘ﬂrt; of their st%.temeﬂnﬁ, and that the resuit of

the inquiry was only this—quite clearly to show
that there was no tiuth in-it. -They did not desipe,
of course, to accept those denials. They chose—this
defendant who is beforé you chose—to disregard the
statement, which he was quite entitled to do if he
had reliable information upon which he could. base
his statement. He was quite entitled to say that,

** although " there. is ‘this statement by Sir Arthar |

Bigge in the newspapers, and altbough it is said

quite clearly that the King never married any orne
before he married the present Queen, yet I have

information in my possession, I have evidence before
me, I have material here, which shows me that this
statement is not frne.” If he bad, now is the appor
Ganity to produce it before you, so that you may
judge ‘of it. From the correspondence it looks
as if’ there was npo information, but that. it
was thought that this was too useful a weapon
to wield against the Monarchy for it to. be

-abandoned, however authentic, and however plin,

clear, and .definite the contradiction was. It was
thought, appavently, that this'was 2 means of hitting

The consequence was that these publications were
made, as I have indicated to you, after there had been
denials, ard denials known to them, of the truth of
the rumours which were, so f{ar, merely rumours
whispered among those people who, no doubt, always
find some delight. in cither repenting or exaggerating
some scandal aboul those who live in high places.
- ORIGIN OF THE ARTICLES.

If you will just follow me for s few minutes—
because I shall not detain you longer—to the letters
to which I am going to call your attention, you will
get the history of how these letters came to be written,
sofarasitiskpowntous, -~

~ One letter I must read, although it is a little out of

| its order, because it is very important you should bear

this in. mind in the consideration of this matter—
n letter. written on October 24 by James to the
defendant. You see this would be & month at least
before the first publication by this defendant of the
Liberafor. This (letter) is on- Oclober 24 and the
first publication, which is alleged, by this defendans,
is, a3 I have indicated to you, November 29, There-
fore this is written wore than a month before the

pablication :— .
.. . - * Paris, October 24, 1900.

“ Dear Mr. Mylius,—~Your letter of OQctober 23
has jush been handed in... I think the proposal to
send the paper to the officers of the Army and Navy
& good one, How many copies.will ba needed and
‘what will be the best way to go aboutit? I sent von
to-day & roll of November papers by post snd also a
bundle by express cantaining about 300, If yor have to
pay anything at, your end keep track of the mattep
and 1 will reimburse you, .- . . In writing the
bigamy article I decided to pablish the facts at once
without wailing. for: further verification. The best
and quickest way to geb at the truth is to begin to
agitate the matter.. If we have not stated the facts
correctly we will hear what the ofher side has to
1 will make this observation. That at that time
the defendant knew as much about it 45 James, and
it was he who was to supply whatever information
theze was to verily the statement about which James
has asked him. James, going on, makes this illu-
minating statement, * the. best way to geb at the
fruth.” . . . Never mind about sich a detail
as verifying the truth of such a grave statement.
as this., Never mind that we have not any informa-
tion “to isupport such & charge. It is a valuable
weapon to be vsed by the Liberalor to hit abt the
Monarchy. --Puoblish it. If ib.is a ke, let the other
side give their information. " Atver we have cwreu.
lated the information broadcast,” s0 far as we ars able
to, -sxys James to the defendant, 'who falls in with
that view, “ let us'call upan the other side to make
some explanation,” * Ihave, as usnal,” writes James,
“ had 1,000 printed; but I bave told the. printers
to keep the type set for a week or s0; that I can have
more printed if necessary.”. Do you think 1,000 will
be as touch as we can dispése of 2 I should think it
would be safficient-; you might drop me a card imme-

‘'diately “on yeckiving this letter.,” Now, I réad that

when this November eaflet was published. L
PR 'j"“-:-a,;a*;':_-fa SR S o f__t_.‘.'f Prair |
+Now then, I go back a littls earlier in dato in order

that I may: show. how it was. that this articly was

in order that you might understand the position

was thbre. “Except from’ 1886 to 1388 he war' 1ot | wrillen, and from whom tho i
obfained,
to Myliug tome ,

ey aov | cannot, 80 Iar as I am acguainted wi glish

in aletter of October 14, from
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Appasently James writes on August 3
- Pear My, Myhﬁi.—-’rfmir’iawér “b’!ﬁiﬁi}:ﬁist is a%

band. 1 fiava senb you, I think, fonr rolle of paper,

méh: the. King st any timo in Malta, He neves wan | and witl send you anather to-day, 50 {hat-you will have

abont 100 caples. If you want imore I will'let vou.
have them, . . . ¥ sin gl thay you sre pleased
with the Augist * Tih." I do not know that I shall
bs abls to ketp np with the same-high standard.
That is one reason why 1 want to discover and en-
coursgo- new talent. I¢ you know snybody with
* ideas ’ urgs them $o got into communication with me.
Without a doubt they will' have something to say
wﬂﬁhPMtlIMl ¢ o ® " o - :
James wiitos to Mylius on August §:~"* Can you

Jet mo know as much as yon know, or can you find

out, about the present King's fimt wite. ‘When hewas
Duke of York he married the dsughter of & civillan,
some general's daughter, I believe. 'When the $hen
Duke: of Clarenco died (who was the diréct helr),
George became direct Helr to the Throne, and he
put away his then wife in order {o ‘tnairy s Royval
porson.” - R

‘1 read that zo that you may know how these articles
originated. I.pass on to Ister letters, to.a letter of

{ October 1, again from James to the defendant Mylius.

It has & postscript written in pencil on the back of
the last page of the letter—" I have an idea thatif

the truth were known we would discover that the

present. King is no better than & bigamist. He
put- away his first wife in order to marry the present
woman. I bave spoken with some English people
about the matter, and they, all being lowal, keep
‘mum.' If we could get at the facts we could get
out & special * bigamy coronation namber’ of the
Liberctor.” -On October 8 there is another letter,
gnd this is, 50 far as I know, the first time that there
is mentioned ina letter to Mylius Sir Michaei Calme-
Seymour and his family. This is & letter in answer to
Information which has beén supplied by tho defend-
ant :—* Yours of the 8th to hand. . . . With regard
to the King’s marriage to the danghter of Sir Michae)
Culme-Seymour, yon eay that this first marriage
was “not. recognized by the law of England as the
Boyal assent was pot obtained.” This is not quite
clear to me.. I supposed that by the Common Law
and by the Ecclesiastical Jaw of England when 2
marriage has been legally celebrated it took a divorea
Yo annul it, and I did not know that Royal persons

were any exception to this role under the law of

England. In other words, it & son of an English

King or Queen marries without his parents’ consent
is not the marriage recognized by the English Courts,
and are not the children of such marriage regarded
as legitimate? When I get back fo Paris I will
look up this matter in Blackstone.” {A laugh.)
*“ The fact that the first wife was not of Royal bleod
law,
render null a marriage contracted with the King’s
son. ‘We will clear away all subterfuges and dodgery,
but what we must have is a knowledge of all the

1{acis and of the law. I do not believe that English

law can be as yon say it is.” There is just a passage,

T of Ocl« James to the defendants
“ Dear Mr. Mylins—TI tied np a big bundle of papers’
about 1,000, planning to send them to you by express’
but found they would not accept the bundle until
after the strike was over. I then sent youimmediately
by post a smaller bandle. . . . The English
Constitution is not a written affair, and, of course,
our opponents could argne from the standpeint of
precedent showing that in former wvears INATTiages
of Heirs to the Throne with commoners had not been

recognized, but, in the case of George V., I do not !

DRI T SRS R SR J oo e e, L
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Then, on Novermber 15, Krishnavarma writes to the
defendant Mylus direct. He says:~*“1 thank
¥ou Ior your post~card of the 13th.. Yourinstructions
regarding the Iiberafor will be duly carried out.”
Bo that you will see’ at thet date from these things
-and from what happened atterwards that the defen-
dant had given the instructions to Krishnavarma

apparenfly by letter on the 13th, that ke was to send.
on some more of these papers.  You will hear quite

Plainly from the evidence that defendant received twe
lots and circulated them both i November and ix
December, that isthe publication made with referency
to this marriage in the issue of the Liberator of
November-29, o which I bave called your atiention.
Now that is all the correspondence with which I am
going fo trouble von at present, and all the letters
to vhich it is necessary thet I shounld refer, at any rate
uniil we come to a later stage of this case. Of course,
if it becomes necessary we may have to refer to others.
But you will observe from what I have read that, in
spite of those letters, and in spite of the failure of this
man to get any Information to suppoert his story, and
in spite of the fact that he knew there had been this.
contradiction by Sir Artbur Bigge, he proceeded to
make the publications which sare charged aga'nst
him in this case, and which, at any rate as regards
the dates November 29 and December 19, are admitted
publications, That, gentlemen, is reazlly the whols
of the story. o
" You will have observed that the defendant,
who circulated +this 1libel, circalated - it with
full Lknowledge of the contents, that bhe
had 2 share in. the writing of the article or in

the ‘informsation supplied upon which the article was

written, and that he was aware, at any rate, that they

failed to get the information which was requaired for

the purpose of suopporting this story. He must

| have been aware, from the material I have placed

befora youn, that he was circulating a most gross
and serious libel. He was aware from what James
was writing {0 him that one of the objects of it was
to kit at the Monarchy—to destroy the respect of
the British people for their Xing. He was aware
that the intention of James, and of Krishnavarma,
vho sends the libeis over fo him, and of himself,
the defendant, was that he shonld, by circulating
them, cub away, as the phrase is in the letter, the
respect which the people of England now pay to
their King. He knew that the rumour which had
anticipated the libel had been seti at rest by the
statement made by Sir Arthur Bigge. They revived
it, they circulated it, and. they used it for their own
pursuits, alleging, as is plain from the libel, that the
man who stood at the head of this country—that
the Sovereign, if what they were alleging were true,
had been faise to the Church, false to the lady with
whom he had gone through the ceremoeny of marriage,
and false to the children who were born of that
marriage. That is his statement.

Ter Krxe's PErsoxar. HoXoUDER.

The defendant knew also that this was being used
for the purpose, as James has said, “ of spreading
the Republican idea ”—of an attack wupon the
Monarchy. There is no objection, or, at any rate,
there is ne objection that I am going to make, or
that I shall refer to in this case, to his spreading
Republican ideas as much as he likes, provided
he keeps within the law. - It is not for the Monarchy
that the protection of this Court has been sought
by means of this case. The Monarchy in this country
rests upon foundations more secure than any
that could be wundermined by the attacks of
James or of the defendant Mylins. But the pro-
tection is sought for the Xing .as a man, for

see that {his precedent holds good because he was | the King as a husband, and for the King as a father.

not Heir to the Throne when he married the first
wife. When you write, let me know what you
think abount this point. I am quite sure that we

Your profection is sought for the honour of the
King. In submitting this case to you, I do not ask
vou 1o deal with it in any other way than vou would

have here an opportunity t¢ make a formidable | the most ordinary case as between one citizen and

attack on the monarchy, but T wish to direct it in |

such a manner as to deprive our opponents of lepal

apcther. The same roles of evidence and the same
considerations must apply. You have to determine

defences and subterfuges. . . . Perhaps vyon this case, and you will determine it of course npon
can give me valuable suggestions which will help in the evidence that will be laid before yon. Yon will

framing an article on this subject.™ |

In a letter dated October 22 James wrote to the
defendant :—* November Lib. in the press, containing
strong article on subject we have been investigating.
Think it will make a stir in London. The time is
come for hard hitting.” I read you the letter of
Qctober 24 in which there was a proposal to send
the papers to the officars of the Army and Navy,

4

facts correctly we will hear what the ofher side has to
say.” At the end of it are these words :—* I appro-

ciate more than 1 can say the time which yvou devote

| Judge it Lairly and impartially.
| consider cverything that can possibly be said or may
| be urged cither as defence or in any other way by the

You will, I am sure,

defendent. But you will also, I know, bear in mind
this : that the King is none the 1ess entitled to the

| verdict of a jury and to protection in an English

Court of justice in any attack made upon his honour

| because he happens to be the King of England.

*.

If we.have not stated the | :

AT

THE PUBLICATION OF THE LIBEL.

Détective-lnsPectGr James McBrian, ;::f the
Criminal Investigation Department at Scotland Yard,

to writing to me, considering that your hours of work | 28 the first witness. - In examination by Mr. MuIs

are s0 Jong elsewhere. Krishnavarma was here two

he said :—On November 23 at 10 o’clock in the

days ago and -he spoke with the bighest: enthusiasm of | morning I was at Newhaver. 1 went to the Cuostoms

your regularity and fidelity. Be assured such things
are nof forgotien. Ever yours, B. H. James.”

On November 2 James wrote :—* Dear Mr. Mylius,
—1 am on the train between Bordeaux and Spains
Received your létter of October 30 with clipping.
Regard statement made by Bigge as tending to con-

firm our case. Let them make more complete ex-
planstions.”

AN EMPHATIC REPUDIATION.

Now I propose here to deal with that statement,
which he referred to and which he relied upon in his
plea of justification :—*‘ Received vour articles of
October 30 with clipping.”’ The clipping apparently
must be from Reynolds's Newspaper, which is referred
fo by the defendanf, and which is under date of
October 30, the day apparently when the defendant

vy | ‘ { wrole to James.
at the Monarchy which they must not abandon.|

S Rurus Isaacs then read an extract from
Reynolds’s Newspaper of October 30, 1910 :—
**We have reason to believe that the followino

=

letter has been forwarded by Sir Arthur Bigge, Private

Secretary to his Majesty the King, to the Rev. David

J. Garland, Archdeacon of North Queensland, in
reference to certain statements which appeared in the
Brisbane Telegreph :—

416 is indeed surprising and regrettable that the
Brigbane Telegraph should have descended to publish

{ an alleged detailed account of a supposed morganatic

mearriage of the King. For any such statement is
absolutely false, and counld only have been published
either through ignorance or malice. You have
my aunthority for stating in whatever manner vou may
think fit that King George was never married, morga-
natically or otherwise, until July 6, 1893, when, as
Puke of York, he msrried Princess Victoris Mary of
Teck, her present Majesty. Moreover, nothing in his
Majesty’s life could give the slightest ground for the
conception of such a cruel and wicked lie.”

That is on Octodber 30, and it is enclozed by the |

defendant to James, and vou have James’s comment

on it. What itisthatwauldhsveh&ennecessaryin‘
order to satisfy him I am really at a loss $0 conceive. :

| shed and I saw there 2 brown-paper parcel.

1t was
marked M.N. 9933, and was addressed to E. F.

Mylius, 18, Courtnell-sireet, Bayswater. It was
opened in my Ppresence and it contained about 1,000
numbers of the November isspe of the Liberalor.
After I had examined the contents the parcel was done
up again and 1 proceeded to I.ondon. This copy of
the ZLiberalor now produced is one of the November
issue, the same es I saw in the parcel. On the evening
of the same day at 8.30 1 was outside 18, Courtnell-
street, Bayswater, and I saw the messenger from
i Messrs. Stockwell, the carriers, deliver the parcel at
t No. 18. The name of that messenger was Shipman.
1 was only three or four yards away and the messenger
i delivered the same parcel as I had previously seen
i at Newhaven.

Did vyou see who took the parcel?—Yes,
] saw the defendant Lkere take it, and I
saw the delendant 6ign the receipt for it

This document now produced is the receipt.
{ That receipt contains the identification mark

ALN. 9833. On December 16 I went to Willow-walk
Goods Station of the YL.ondon, Brighton, and South
Coast Railway, and there I saw a2 brown paper parcel
marked M.N. 6464 and addressed fto E. F. Ayvlius,
18, Courtnell-street, Bayswater. The parcel was

{ opened in my presence, and it contained about 500

copies of the December issue of the Liberalor. 1
took out three of those copies, and I now produce one
of them. The parcel was then done up again. At

8.40 on the evening of the same day I saw that parcel
delivered to the defendant at 18, Courtnell-street,
Bayswater, by a messenger named Stevens, in the
employvment of Messrs. Stockwell and Co. 1 was
only three or four yards away, and I saw the parcel
delivered ¢o the defendant Mylius. I saw the de-

fendant sign the receipt for if. This is the receipt

produced. On December 26 I received a warrant

| from Sir Samuel Evans, the Vacation Judge, for the

arrest of the defendant, and requiring him to find
bail to plead to and answer the ex officio information
filed in this case. Upon that warrant I arrested the
defendant at Scotland Yard, whither he had been
brought by one of my men. I told him the effect

You have heard the statement which I have read, and | of the warrant upon-which he bad been arrested, and

one would have imagined that nothing could be more
emphatic and nothing could be more conclusive. In
a letler written on November 7 James wrote that
some one “‘ wanted more November Iiberafors.

. « I wrote to bhim to consult with vou, and,
if yon thought fit, to write to Krishnavarma, asking
him to tell the printérs to strike off another 1,000
and send you by express. . ... Write me about
the discussion in Loondon so that I can have sornething

to put in the next Liberafor on this question. I do
not attach much credence to the

marriage, why do not these people explain why for

years every one has passod the word around that there |

Was & marriage ?
get at the truth,”

I caunot help observing that all this was a little late,

We must rom this matter down, and

‘as he had already printed and published the statement,

gll that he had got apparently ; and to that extent

_ _ statement made |
by Bigge and published in Reynolds’s, 1f there was no read now, Mr. Mvylius, do vou ?

he made no reply. On the same day—namely,
December 26—]1 went to his lodging at 18, Courtnell-
street, taking with me the key which I found on the
defendant. 1 found there a number of letters signed
by James. 1 produce those letters. Amongst them
are the letters which have been read by the Attorney-
General-—letters dated February 13, March 16,
March 27, March 30, May 2, August 35, Cctober 1,
Ocfober 14, October 22, October 24, November 2,
November 11, and November 15,

The LoD CHIEF JUSTICE.—You do not wish them

The defendant.—No, my Lord.

The Lorp CEIEF JUSTICE.—Hsave you any ques-
tion to put to this witness, Mr. Mylius ?

The defendant.-——No, my Lord.

Detective-canstable Auger, of Scotland Yard, ex- |
amined by Mr. ROWLATT, said :—On November 29

ke was quito entitled ¢o this observation, that at any | 25t I was near 18, Courtnell-street, shortly afier

rate i, was not a statement invented entirely by them- | 1 ¢ ©'clock at night. and Isaw Mylies come out of 18,

selves. There was same colour given to the statement | COurtnell-strect, with a brown-psper parcel under
ang theve had been some sort of a rumour, as indicated | D15 aTm. EE{e proceeded first to the Notting-hill-gate
by what I have already read to you. What it is that Tube _St-a.tmn, where he met some one, a‘nd then he
this James wants in view of the statements I have ! went into the post-office close by. That is the High-

‘read to yon on October 30 it is impossible to conceive. ; )
Then, on November 11, Jarmes writes to Mylius 1 inside the posfm?}ce hand the parcel {0 an ass:stm;t,
“ ] am waiting with interest news tolling me what | W20 &fter weighing the parcel, gave Mylius a stamp,
you have decided with regard fto having another

street, Notting-hill-gate, Post-office. I saw him

which Mylius aflixed, and then handed the brown-

1,000 November *XLib.’ printed. . . . Tha only | PaPer parcel back again. The parcel was about 18in.
way to deal with the British Monarchy is to cut away by I9in., and about 4in. or 5ia. thick,

‘ respect.”  As.soon as the people cease to réspect it

The Y.orp Comxr JusTicE.—It would contain a

i¥ is done for, they will not respect it when they see | 800d many copies of this paper, if that was what
that such attacks as we make can be made with suceeas | was in it ?

and with impunity.” -

'Y think that James. was -a.utic'xp;ﬁng ovents, and
apparantly not guite correctly as they have turped

out, Of course, it will remain for yon, after vou bave

hesrd the:-evidenco that will: be laid before. vou, to
say- whether such attacks as these ean be

this country with impunity. On November 11, |afterwards I saw him go oubt.again. ¥He was carryine

made in

James writes .to the defendant:—*7 wrote vou fo
communicate with Krishnavarma if vou.want more
printed. | He will give the opder to the printer.”

The witness.—Yes, mv Lord.

Detective-constable Fitzgerald, esamined by Mr.
ROWLATT, said :—On December 19 I was in Courtnell-
sireet, Bayswater, about 7 o’clock in the evening,
near No. 18. About 20 minutes past 7 I saw the
defendant Mylius enter that house. Twenty minutes

A brown-paper parcel about 12in. long and 2in, or

Sin. thick. He went to the Notting-hill-gate High-

street postroffice. When inside he handed the parce)



to a post-office assistant, who welghed. it and handed | in or out of England ?—I was out of Engla.nd in fh@

it back to Mylins with a stamp.
1he defendant did not ask the witness any questions.

ADMIRAYL CULME-SEYMOUR’S STATEMENT.

Admiral Sir Michael Culme-Seymour was next
examined by the SorLICITOR-GENERAL.

You are a baronet, are you not 7—Yes.

And a G.C.B. and G.C.V.,0. ?—Yes.

What was the year of your marriage 2—1864.

How many children have been born of the marriage ?
——Xive. Three boys and two girls.

Give us the names of the two girls, please, the
elder first 7-~—Elizabeth.

She was born, I think, in 1871 2—Yes, in 1871.

Is that elder daughter still living ?—Yes, she is
still living.

She married, I think, Captain Trevelyan Napier 2-—
Yes.

In 1899 ?2-—Yes.

The LorD CHIEF JUSTICE.—We had better have
the full baptismal name.

The witness.——Mary Elizabeth.

The SoriCITOR-GENERAL (to the wilness).~—She is
In Court ?—YX¢s.

What was the name of your younger daughter 72—
Laura Grace.

She was born, I think, on July 18, 1873 2—Yes.

Can yvou tell us what was the first occasion when |

either of your daughters visited Malta ?—They came
out there when I was Commander-in-Chief of the
Mediterranean Fleet. 1 went out in July, 1893, and
my wife and two daughters came out in the November
following.

That is Novamber, 1883 ?2—Yes.

The LorD CHIEF JUSTICE.~—~You were asked
whether that was the first time they went to Malta 7—
Yes, that was the first fime they had been in Malta.

The SOLICITOR-GENERAL.~—Did they pass that
winter, 1893-4, in Malta with vou ?—Yes.
And I think went away again in the summer ?—
They went home in the summer of the following year.
Did they come out again in the antumn of 1894 7—
Yes.

And the same thing happened in the antumn of |
1895 7—-Yes.

Your younger daughter has died, I think ?—Yes,
she died on November 22, 1893, at Malta.

She would then be 22 years of age ?—Yes. -

Your danghter Laura Grace died at Malta. Was
she buried there ?—Yes, she was buried at Malta.

Had she ever been married ?-—No, never.

During the periods you speak of, when your
daughters were in Malta, had his Majesty the King
ever been in Malta at all 2—He was never there the
whole time I was there.

And that includes the time
daughters were there >—Yes.

To the best of your knowledge had your vounger
daughter even spoken to his Majesty ?~—No, 1 am
quife sure she never had.

As far as you know, had she ever been in his

when both your

presence ?——No, I think not, except that the da,zt,*'l

before I left for the Mediterranean on July 6, 1893,
I was with her at a2 garden party at Marlborough
House. She may have seen his Majesty there.

The 6th of July, 1893, was also the day of the
marriage of the present King.
party you speak of held in connexion with the cere-
mony ?—I really do rot know whether it was or

1

|

]

1

.I

.} spring.

For how long * -——Fer five or six weeLs |

With that exception were you in England through-
out the whole of those three years ?—Yes. ~
~ Were you and. your sister companions 2—Yes..

during those years ?~—She was not abroad in either

of those years. She was in England the whole time 1886 and . 1893,

except that I think she went over to Beulegne
day and was there a few hours. .= .,

In the year 1890 where were. you 9—1 waa m
England or in Scotland.

Were you out of the island of Grea.t Bnta.m tha.t.
year 2—INNo. ~

And vour sister, where was she "——-She Wa-s in
Engla.nd {oo.

Throughout the whole of the year 1890 ?—Yea.

Would you know if your sister had ever cen-
tracted a marriage >—7Yes, cerbai.nl}f. ' '

Did she ever marry ?—No. o

This concluded the examination of Mrs. Napier.

The: LorD CEIEF JUSTICE.—Now, Mr. Mylius, a,ny

| questions ?

The defendant.—No, thank you, my Lord.
OTHER MEMBERS OF THE FAMILY.

Captain Michael C‘tﬂme-Seymeur, R.N., was the
next witness.

Mr. RBOWLATT.—Are you ab present ea.ptam of I:u.s
Majesty’s ship Argyll 2——Yes.

And vou are the eldest son ef Admlra.l Sir Mleha.el
Culme-Seymour >~—7Yes.

You have been in the havy m:nce March, 1883 ?—
Yes.

And have held commlssmna n va.rmus parts ef the
world ?—Yes.

Were you in Malfta in 1893 ?——Yes, T amved there
in the Howe just before Christmas, 1893.

How long did you remain on tha‘$ station ""-—-A
year and ten months..

That would be {ill Sept-ember, 1895 ?—Yes.

;De you remember whether your mother and sisters
came out to Malta in 1893 ?——Yes, I remember they
were there when 1 arrived.

Did they remain there during the winter ?—Yos.

| And were they out the next winter ?—Yes.

|

B

}

1893 or on any but the occasions that have been

|

]

The third winter you had left there ?—Yes.

Did you keep in closé correspondence mth yOour
sisters ?—Yes, very close.
So far as you know were they ever in Malta before

mentioned ?—--No.

No questions were asked by the defendant.

Mr. John Wentwerth Culme-Seymour then gave
emdence

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL—You are, T think, con-

cerned in the work of Oxferd House, Bethna.l-green P
Yes.

Michael Culme-Seymour ?—Yes.

The Lorp CrIEF JUSTICE.—May I ask you to give |

|

us the order of the children ? Who is the eldest of
the family ?—Michael is the eldest,”’ Mary c¢omes
next, and then came my other sister.

The two sisters came in between M 1eha.el a.nrl YOu.
That is what I wanted to knoxw.

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL~—During 1893, except
at boliday time, you werc at school at Winchester 2——

Was the garden | ves.

Do you remember vour father proceedmg to Malta

to take up the command of the Fleet in the M@dl*!

not. IXZnow there was a garden party at Marlborough | terrancan ?—Yes.

House.

Was vyour younger daughter with you on that
occasion 7—Yes, she was.

Now, your other daughter, Mrs. Napier, as far as
you are aware has she ever met the present King ?-—
I believe sbe met him when she was staying on
board the Britannia when the present King was a,
cadet on board. She was then eight yvears old.

The LoD CHIEF JUSTICE.—~What date was that ?— |}

About 1879.
The SOLICITOR-GENERAL.—ANd after that was

there any further occasion of meeting that you know |

of 7—No. She may have seen him at Court when she
has gone past, but she never met him until she met
him at my house when I was Commander-in-Chief at
Portsmouth and he came to visit me there.

When was that 2—In 1898.

There was another occasion, was there not, at
Lord Spencer’s? Were you present then ?-——No;
I was not in England at the time. I do not think it
was ab Lord Spencer’s. 1 think it was at Lord
Derby’s.

As far as you know, is tha.f:- the extent of the meet- |

ings which have taken place at any time between

cither of your daughters and the present King ?—
Yes.

I think you succeeded Sir George Tryon in the |

Mediterranean Command ?-—Yes, 1 went -out to
replace kim when the Victoria went down.

The Victoria disaster occurred on June 22, 1893 2—
Yes.

The Lorp Cmer JusticE.—~—Did Sir George Tryon
go down with the ship ?—-Ho did.

The SOLICITOR-GENERAL.—Let me ask vou this.’

You did not go out to take up that command until
after the marriage of the present King and Queen ?2—

1 was appointed before.
in the President on June 29, a.nd I left England on
July 6.

That was the day of the marriage ?—Yes.

Neither of your daughters ever came outb to Malta
until after that date 7—No.

- Lady Seymour is living ?—0h, ves.

Is she 1n a very bad state of health ?—Yes, her
heart is affected and it is impossible to bring her up
here.

The Lorp CEier JUSTICE (to the defendant).—
Do you wish {o ask the witness any questions ?

The defendant.—No, thank you, my Lord.

LADY COorLME-SEYMOUGR'S HEALTH.

Dr. Bernard IRoworth Turner, of Ourndle, North-
amptonshire, examined by Mr. RowraTtT, said that
he was now attending Lady Seymour, who was in
Northamptonshire.

Mr. BOWLATT.~—When did you see her last ?-—
Yesterday.

What swas then her state of health ?-—It was such

that it would have been absolutely dangerous to bnng
her here.

The defendant did not cross-examine the witness,

MRrs. NAPIER AS A WITNESS.

Mrs. Mary Elzabeth Napier was next called and
examined by Mr. Murr.

You are a daughter of Sir Michael Culme-Seymour ?
~-Y 3.

Are you married to Captain Trevelyan Napier 2—-
Yes.

When were you married to him 2—On August 17,
1399,

He is still alive 7—Yes.

You had not been married before you were married
to Captain Napier ?-—No.

Did you first see his present Majesty the King in
1879 >—In 1879 or 1878. I am not quite sure
which. '

That was on board the Britannia when he was a
cadet ?—7Yes.

You were then sever or eight years old ?—Yes.

Did you next see his Majesty on February 16,
1893 ?>—1I think I saw him at a party at Lord Spencer’s.

The Lorp CHIEF JUsSTICE.—Was it at Lord
Spencer’s 2—Yes.

Mr. Mo1R.~—Did you speak to him at all on that
occasion ?—INO.

Did you next sce his Majesty in 1897 at your
father’s house in Portsmouth 2-—No : in 1898,

When your father was Cﬂmma.nder -in-Chief at
Portsmouth ?—Yes.

Had you seen his Majesty at all between those
dates ?—No, to the best of my recellectmn, unless I
saw him at Court.

When did you pay your first visit to Malta P—
We arrived there on November 17, 1893—my sister,
my mother, and I.

That was nearly five months after the present
King and Queen were married >—Yes.

Did you stay in Malta till the spring of 1894 7
Yes.

And then returned to England ?—Yes.

Was vour second visit to Malta during the wintep
of 1894 >—7Yes; we arrived there in Qctober or
November, 1894,

Did you return to England frem that second visit;
inn the spring of 1895 ?—Yes.

Was your third visit to Malta made in November,
1895 ?—Yes.

And did veu return to England in the’ spnng of
1896 2—Yes.

With the exception of these three visits have yon
ever becn i Malta ?—Never.

Was his Majesty the King in Malta at all while
vou were there 7—No, he was not..

During the years 1886, 1887, and 1888 were youn

I hoisted my flag formally .

Did you yourself go out to Malta at a]l while he

{ was there ?—Yes, I went out twice.

In what year ?-—The first time in December, 1893. |

The next time in the spring of 1895,

Was the first time you went out during the ﬁrst
year of his appointment 2—Yes.

You were living in close fouch with your sisters ?—
Y es.

So far as you know was 1t the first visit they had

{ paid, in 1893, to the island of Malta % —Yes.

They were there when you arrived ?—Yes.

Captain George Culme-Seymour, of the 60th Rifles;
a brother of the last witness, said, in answer to Mr.

| Rowlatt :—In 1893 I was at school at Wellington.

{

F
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Ab the end of the year I went to Malta to stay with
my father. My sisters were there too. 1 went

again to Malta after my sister died in 1895. I did
not go out in 1894. So far as I know, my sisters
ha.d never been to Malta before 1893.

'EVIDENCE FROM THE Amfrmﬁ"" v

Mr. Charles Walker, head of the Gemmisswn a.nd
{ Warrant Branch of the Admiralty, who was examined
by the ATTORNEY-GENERAL, said :~The orders of
the Board of Admiralty for the appointment of
officers in the Royal Naval Service are earried out |
in my Department and recorded. I produce the
appointments of his Majesty the King to ships on
which he served between January 14, 1886, and
July 6, 1893. I have also an extract of the logs of
the ships to which his Majesty was appointed. From
these log books 1 can ascertain the movements of the
ships every day.

Will you tell me frem these log books and the!

records on what date it was that his Majesty was last
on service on one of the King’s ships at Malta ?—It
was on October 23, 1888.

The Lokb CHIEF JUSTICE.—On what ship >—The
Alexandra.

The A’ITDR.,\EY-GE\‘ERAL —Was his Majesty on
service on any ship which went to Malta i in the year
1890 7—He was not.

Or after October 23, 1888, up to July 6, 1893 P—
He was nof. .

When was the next occasion after Oebobcr 23, 1888,
according to the Admiralty records, on which his
Majesty was in Malta ?>—On March 25, 1901, when |
passing through the Mediterranean station in the
Ophir, which was commissioned as the King's ship
to convey the present King and Quecen to his Maj esty’s
Dominions bevond the Seas.

The Lorp CHIEF JUSTICE.—Was that on the way

{ out or the way home ?—On the way out.

lthe commission of Admiral

The ATTORKREY-GENERAL.——YOUu have
actual official dates of the loss of the Victoria and

Culme-Seymonr 7—
June 22, 1893, was the date when the Victoria went

down and Sir George Tryon was lost. He was |

succeeded in command of the Mediterranean F¥leet

| by Admiral Culme-Seymour, whose appelntm ent is

dated June 29, 1883.

- The Lorp CHIEF JUSTICE.—How long had Sir
George Tryon been at Malta ?~—I cannot say.
think he was Commander-in-Chief about two years.

THE CROWN ADVOCATE OF MALTA.

The Hon. Vincenzo Frendo Azopardi, Crown Advo-
cate, Malta, was the next witness.

In reply to the SOLICITOR-GENERAYL he stated :— |
I have collected and brought. to this country the |
marriage registers of Malta for the period 1886 to |

July 6, 1893, the date of the wedding of the present

King and Queen. The registers fall into  classes—
Roman Catholic registers, registers of the different
Protestant churches, registers of the non-united
Greek Church, and Civil registers.

- In answer fo the Lorp Crrer T USTICE, Mr. Aze-

pardi said that maerlabes had to be registered in the
Civil registers as well as in the parish registers.

The SOLICITOR-GENERAL.—By the law of Malta
is marriage regisiration compulsory ?-—It is. |

Is not it possible for one to be married in the Civil
formm withcut any religious ceremony gt alli *-——Wae
bave no Civil form.

Did you receive these registers, whick you say are
exhaustive, from the proper custody in Malty 2
Yes.

. Have you retained them in your custody in order
to brmg them over to England, and have you kept
them in proper custody, and are they here just out-
side -the Court ?—~-They are here.

Have you conducted a search thmugh these
registers in order to see whether there is any entry
bearing on this matter ?~—I have.

The Lorp CHIEF JUSTICE.—Do you mean that you
have done it yourself 7—Yes.

The SOLICITOR-GENERAL.~—The registers are ip
two or three languages, all of which are known to
vyou but one, the Greek, and there you were assisted
in your search by another gentleman af your side ?.—
Yes ; the registera are in Latin or-Italian or English ;
but there is one regxster—-that- of the non-united
Greek Church—which is in Greek, which I do neb
understend. " The others I do understand. .

Will you tell us. whether in all. those reg:stera,
through that series of years, there is any entry of the
marriage of ‘a.lady bearing the name Seymour, .or
Culme, or Culme-Seymour ?——There is not.-.

I-think that the name of Seymour occurs once,
but that it-was the name of the brldegmem and net
of the bride 2-——That: is-80. - -

And you know the mnaen ?---I peraenally
man in qoéstion.. - . --

And is there any e.ntry to be d.laeevered in theee

knew the

h'

gl ik

1

|

|

And vou arc the second of the three sons of Slrl

{

|
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reglsters ‘which, .give§ fhe ahghteaﬁ suspiemn of . sip- | be: allewed,
perb to what is here suggested ?-—Not the slightest. ., mJUI'F':

. At the ,request ef ‘the SGLIGITGR-GEHEBAL the
defendant preduced a- neta.ca dated January 24, 1011,

< signed - by the- Director of. Public: Prosecutions en

.| behalf of the: Attorney-General, ,intimating to him
And are you able to say where your sister was|

that arrangements had been made for the production
of the ariginal. regiaters of- marriages. in Malta: between

Yard.

bys

LR
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DVIDE\UE OF SIR ARTHUR BIGGE.

| Su.' Arthur Bigge, one of fhé pnmte seeretanes te
e King, was the last witnéss’ called.
~ The -“1T;‘6m¢EY~GERERAL ---Yeu were the enly

-'I [ ] __,J
S

| private secretary of his present Majesty frori the time

of Quén Victoria* 3 death untal he ascended the
Th]:one ?-—~Yes, =

' Were you present ab the marrlage of His Ma.]&stv?
the Xin¢ and her Majesty’ the Queen ‘"‘---I was.
~ That was on July 6, 1893 >—Yes.” . .
 On O¢tober 30, 1910, you Wwere orie et l:us Masesw 5
private sécretaries P<—Yes: -

In the second paragraph under the third heading |
of the justification put in by the defendint there is
this passage:—* A cerfain persén named Arthur
Bigge, purporting to be: fthe secretary to the said
King of . England, has ¢aused to be. published in a
certain newspaper called Ra,yewlds’a Newspaper of
October 30, 1910,.a statement' aﬁrmmg that the 5aid

o

King of England was’ net and is net and Has nevér |

been married to any * other person than the aald
daughter of the Dike of Teck.” Is that the issue ef

| Rﬂ*.fnﬂlds’a Newspaper (handmg a ‘newspaper to the

mtness) in wheh the etat-ement was reproduced ?-——
Yes.
n Purpertmg to be the seereta-y ——At. that tlme

you were in fact one ef the private ser:reta.rles to the
King ?~—T was.

The Amm. EY-GENERAL read the atabemeut Whlch

‘appearcd in Reynolds's Newspager of the date men-

tioned, together with Sir Arthur B:gge s letter. (They
had been read by the Atterney-General in lus opanmg
statement, and are given above.) |

When was that letter wrltten ?——On Aug'lle 8.’

To the gentleman na.med. "-—-—Te Archdeacon Gar-
land.

The LORD CHIEF J USTICE.——-When did you’ ﬁmt
become private secretary té the Prince of Walés or
the King ?—1 hecame private seerete.xzy fo the present
King, when Duke of York, immedmtely aﬂ:er the
death of Queen “Vicbona: in 1901,

This closed the case for the’ pmseeutten, a.nd t-he
Court ad_,eurned fer Juncheon.

THE DEFEME.

'Lpen resumme a.fter ltmeh ‘the - LORD CHIET

JUsTICE asked the defendant whether he proposed
to call evldenee

The “defendant.—I shall ecall some evidencé,” hut
before I do so I should like to address the Court
with reference to the methods adopted by the prosecu-
tion, and I should. also like to read out to the Court
some  quotations from mlpertant Tegal | authermea_
bearing upon procédure i in this  particular case. =

The "LOorRD CHrer Y USTICE.——Yeu can address
me on ‘any points of law.you ‘wish to raise, but you

had better do that at the end of yeur ev'ldence, if

you are going to give evidence. ' .
The defendant.—I should prefer to do it now.
The LORD CHIEF JUSTICE.—Very well,
The defendant (Whe read from a 'sheaf of blue

foolscap pages in an indistinct’ voice),—In the |

chapter entitled * Practice ‘and Evidence in Pro-
ceedings by way of Criminal Information » of **'Odgers
on. Libel > there are two systems dealt with. In
the first the Attorney-General may file an ez officio
information. of his own motion ; secondly, all other
informations can only be filed af ter the Crown Attomey
has moved the Court for an order nisi, calling upon
the defendant to show cause why an information
should not be granted. Now I have been pro-
cecded agamst by the first method. The guarantees
which are given to the accused by the second method
are swept away. What are the ‘guarantees pro-
vided in the sccond method? The defendant is
summoned to appear and show cause why the informa-
tion should not be granted against him. The ‘prose-
cuftor—in this case, the. ng-—-—must come into
Ceurt in the first mstance and must not ha.ve
attempted to e’btam redress in other ways (R. v.
Ma,:ﬁha.ll 4 B, and B., 475). 'The affidavits on ‘which

the application is based must .be the sworn affidavits
of the prosecutor. All particulars of the charge

musk be contained in them. There must be 2 speelﬁc:

denial of the. partwula.r charges, even where it is a
duke that is aspersed (Rex v. Haswell and Bate, 1
| Dougl., 387). 1 will quote Stephen's Commentaries

on the Laws of England, Volume IV., p. 374:— |

“The informations that are exhibited in the name
of the Sovereign’ in criminal cases are of two kinds—
those which are truly and properly his own suits,

| and filled ex officio by his own immediate officer,
i the Attorney-General ; secondly, those in which,

though the Crown is the nominal prosecutor, yet
it is at the relation of some private person or common

inforraer. And these last are filed by the Sovereign's

| coroner and attorney, usually called “ the Master

of the Crown Office ™ ; who is, for this purpose, the
standing officer of the public. The objects of the
Sovereign’s own criminal information, filed ez officio
by his Attorney-General, are properly such enormous
misdemeanours as peculiarly fend to dzsturb or
endanger his Government, or to malign or afiront
him in the regular dlseharge of his Roya.l functions.
For offences so lugh and dangerous in the punish-
ment or prevention of which a2 moment's delay would
be fatal, the law has given to the Crown the power of
immediate prosecution .by this method, without

{ waiting for any previous apphea.’men to any other
{ tribunal ; which power, thus necessary mnot only

1

got the |

to the ease and safety, but even to the very emstence
of the Executive Government, was engmally reserved
in the great plan of the Xnglish Constitution, where
provision is wisecly made for the due preservation of
all its parts.” In this' passage I submit it is clear
that the objects of the information ez officio are

| epormous nusdemeaneu.ra of a political  nature.

| offence, and then they pretend that my all

‘f'summary interference of the Court” -

My allezed offence was an enormous misdemeanour
of a political nature. Yet here is the inconsistency
of the Crown. They proceed as if it were a political
eged offence
is to be considered as a personal offence and not politi- | an
cal at all. 'The only way to proceed for a personal
offence, no matter whether it is against the King or
against one of his subjects, is. by information in
the ordinary way, and before the Court will grant, the
information the prosecutor must come into Court and
swear an affidavit to the effect that the charges against.

{ him were untrae. It is an untenable position for the

prosecution to take up in a case Whlch 1S ba.sed on an
information ¢z officio.

Two KINDs of Lwemmeua

~ Again—I1 quote from Odgers, p. 427—-* Criminal
informations are of two kinds—(1) those filéd by the

_Attomev-ﬂeneral himself, usuvally called ‘ex. -officio |

nformations ; . (2) those filed by the King’s Coroner

and Attorney by diréction of the King’s' Benech
Division at the instance of some private individuzl.

The first class~~that is informations ez officio—is,
as a rule, confined to libels of so dan.gemus a nature
as.to cal for immediate suppression by the: ofScers

|of the State; especially blasphemous, obscene, or

seditious libels, or such as are likely to causs immediate
outrage and public riot and disburbance. In these
cases, therefore, the Attorney-General himself takes
the initiative. There hsas; I belisve, been no ex
officio information filed in England since 1830.”

The LorD CEIEF JUSTICE~1887. I think vyou
have got it wrong. |

The defendant-.—-Odgets aay‘a; e There ha.s, I helleve,

and specifying the dates on which the |
one defendant mlghb msPecb the :reg:sters at New Scet]and

G’Ubﬁﬂ?}ﬂﬂr to the- ‘ng.

|he by his: plea " stated * that' during

been no ¢z officio information filed in England’ emee'

1830.”°

The Lorn CHIER J US’I'ICE.-—-ID the last edxhen it is
corrected to 1887, s

The defendant. —* In the seeend elass of mferma...
tions the relator is genecrally some private individual
who has been defamed. - But still the words complained
of must be such as call for the prompt and immediate
interference - of the Conrt.
evidence that the ordinary remedies by ‘action or
indictment ‘are insufficient in' the. particular case.
.. o .. The rank and dignity of the person: Iibelled
was formierly - takenh into consideration;  and’ in-
formations have been granfed. . .- «» But now it is
settled that ra.nk confers no superior claim t6 the

Then' later it is

There must be some

said :—* It is sedition‘to speak or publish of the King

any words which would”be.ljbellous. and’ actionable

per:se’ if printed and published of any other public
| character.
_whleh sirike at the King's private life and. conduct.”™
Now, in this particular caze ‘there was no application
.| to the Court made upon affidavit, becanse it was the
"Attorney-Generil Wwho brdught an 22 efficio informa-

.}'tion: of his own métion. ‘ *Ys. the Crown trying the |
defendant for séditioh, when no- ]usﬁﬁcataen would:

Thus, any words will be dcemed seditious

t

‘for sedltthn

4 | ASS J L TR S T T B
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&S mere. defamatmn of -chayacter ? . Jf :the
Crown . is. frying the defendant. for ,seditions. libel,

tha course. adept-ea by th,e Atterney-ﬁeneral in laying
‘an.ez officio information was the proper course fo teke,
but if the Gmwnis proceeding for defamatory language
then it is'an improper-course, <he Crown have pro
ceeded by, the second method, which.allows justifica.

tion.. ,The- King’ shonld have taken:the.pesition. of

private preeeeuter, sheuld, ha:ve appea::ed 15 Conrt,
and have made a.ﬂida.ﬁts.

the praeeeat;on be te'eed }o elech’ clther to! tts' me
‘ioP. for _ordinary” defamatery libel. X
ask., the pmsecntmn whether. this. is. an. action. for
sedition or for ordinary: defamatory libel. .If this.is
an aetlen ier &.defamatory.libel, X ask the At-l'amey

Genéral why thie. prgseeutor 3 ef_ﬁdamts ‘have. 3105

L

been ﬁled. ey , . s a;: T-u; ST
The Loan Cmaa :rne‘mce.-—mnﬂly addresﬁ‘ n{‘-’s
]i[r My]ms, not. the; ~General. .. FP

- The defendant.—T ask your Inrdshlp to be 50, good-

as to ask the.Attorney-General why.the affidavits
bave not been filed, and, if they have net been ﬁled
I aak that they‘ be ﬁled mmedlately. RO
The Logd Critz J: USTIGE.—-I role against you, a:ad
$ell you tha.t tlhere is ample evi”dence on-this cri
mformaﬁeﬁ, and that nene ef yeur ob]eetmna. a,pI'ﬁS'-
There, is ‘abundant puthority fer 'the course
adopted 'by the: Att.orney-General in many prevmus
preeeedmgs, and, ib fait, 1 _may tell you ‘that it is

the enlsr course the Attemey-GEneral mnld adept. |

THE DEFENDAZ\“T 8. Armea'rim oAl

The defenda.nt --:My Lord,. if. the Conrb: mfuses
'00 requive. the. ﬁlmg of 'the affidaviis I mave. that.the

-
a " ru

‘action be dan‘.lxssed because thero: is' no precedent

for this.particular*methed.. . If the prosecutor:. does
not’ awear or deny. the truth of bis statements) then
it ceases to. be, I sahmb, an: action for defamatory
libekl.: (As your Iﬂrdﬂhlp -has ruled against me, 1
‘'will now state the. grounds upon. which:1 ask to.call
upon my first. mtneas, that. is. the Xing, to enter.the
witness-box.” I have been m:fermed by your Lerdshlp
already in. Chambers, angd your Lordship wrote~to
me, that the- Court had net the pewer td lssue &

..The LoOED CHyZg- J USTIGE-—-I enlv wrete te "mu
beea.nse ‘1. received your lettér after I bad ‘hesrd
you.in Chamh ers: ~1. was xob-certain that it applied
to. the.same application: I only' wanted vou  to
know that I:treated-it as the. same application, aad
that if you:.had- ‘any:other application to-make you
should point it éut: torme! - Tarther; I pointéd oub
to you:that. you auggested no- conceivable ‘groand
on’ which the evidence ef 1115 Ma]esty Waa H.Leh; te

-* beef any service to.vou. "i< 0 & a

* The defendant.=3y . Inrd the Attomey-‘General
was present 5 1. was.net representeéd by coumsel;” and
I submit, with réspect, that it was not quite the thing
to ask me what I wished-to'state thmngh my witneéss.
{The. rema.inder of the'defendant’s statement.at this
stage: was, ma.nd.lble except to these mmediately
around. him.)

The 1L.OED CB]EF‘ J UETIOE.—--It is ra:bher better tha.t-

I should state wwhat happenéd.>.You. wére- applymg

t0 me-to issue & éubpmna and I desired, as "you had

no; solicitor: or commsel; to hear all that. yeu had to

say. It. was for that reason, in your own interests,

that I asked vou what-Iact you suggested his ‘L‘[ageaty

‘could ‘prove, and: ib:was.then that von said that you

A . -
-* -
K
]

had no. facts which.-he ‘could prove. I then said
that, ‘quite aparb frora that fact! I had no pmr to
issue’ a subpenae upon hisiMajesty. = - ~
The deferidant.~—1I did not - ‘advanee a reason’ at
the {ime becanse I did not wish-to doso. - You said

;aubaequently {hat the Courbt had not-the power 6
subpornao

‘has stated that this is:an action which is similar
to an’ action betweéén one citizen and anbdther..

that were so you would have egua.hty before ‘the |

the ‘prosecutor. The - -Attorney-Geperal

If

law,” but here you have an action where there is no
equzlity, where the privilege of the' King comes
into. conflict with- the Constitutional rights of the
subject. “If the privilege of the Emg i15-t0 ‘he con-
sidered so sacred, then 1 eens:der that® the. Consti-
tutional rights of -1the. subject .ane equally sacred.
The King has made no sworn denial of the charges
which have been made against him 5 the Eing has not
contradicted of his ‘own free will. in the-witness-box
any of those .charges, and I ask yeu to sumrmon my
accuser and let him’' deny the truth of'my statement.

If you refuse to require the ﬁlmg of the affidavit

or the sworn téstimony of the . in ﬂ:te Jvitness-

‘box I submit the Court has abselately no Junsdaetmn

whatever to proceed any further with mv case or to
send me $p.prison. ‘I move on those, grounds that

‘the actionibe dismissed.

The Lorp CHIEF .}UsncE..-:Praceed I rale agamst.
you. This information cannot be dismissed.’
The defendant.-—--Then 1 ret‘uae to proceed any
further. ..

The: LoD GEIEF Jmca.—Yeu sald you wished
to call evidence. - -

The defendant.~—That is my evldenee, m‘y Lord.

The Lorp CHIEF JUSTICE—IIO Yyou wzsh te say
anything more, Mr. Mylius ? |

The defendant.—No, my Lord. I rest my case

there, as 1 have been denied the Constitutional
rlght of a fa.lr trml | -

“THE SUMMING-UP.

The LORD Caxer J USTICE.——Gentl&men of the jury,

it now becomes my duty in a very few sentences 'to
present this case to you. ¥You have heard ‘from
the defendant, whe has not himself gone into the
box or called any witness into "the box &t
all, that -he does not - propose to raise any
other point except the points whick he sub-
mitted to me—that I ought to. dismiss this infor-
mation upon the ground of the ex officio information
by the Aftomey*Genera] or that I onght to call
for afﬁdavlt-s from the persons who could give evidence
in auppert of such information, beea.uae no such
affidavits were filed before the application was lodged.
Well, as 2 matter of fact; the evidence that could be
obtained in. such’ affidavits is before you to-day in
the follest measure. But, gentlemen of the jury,
that is not the ground upon which I declined to accede

to Mr. Mgslius's appheatmn. 1 tell yeu-—a.nd you |

will take the law from me, for if I go wrong in the
law the Court of Appeal will set me right—it is the
right of the Attorney-General in any matter of libel
or.of public wrong which he thinks of sufficient impor.
tance to justify a cnmmal miarmatxen, it is his right,

and in one sense his duty, to file a criminal informa-
tion. ThiS is not the opportunity nor the occasion
for quoting precedent, but I tell yon—and you may
take.the law from me—ib is an entire mistake to
imagine that this method of proceeding is obsolete
or has not been put in force. It has been put in force
in my own .experience, and not infrequently during
the last century. Therefore yon ‘will apply your
minds to that which von have to eenader—- that is,
whether or not this defendant has published a.
defamatory libel against his Magesty and has failed
to prove the trith of it, and has failed to satisty you
that it was in the public interest that such a thing
ghould be said.

THE Dnm*am-r S Poarne\.

Gentlemen, vou will not’ fo rgeb tha‘b this
defendant 1up to-this present mement—— that is to
say, until he rose to address me—has alleged that
the disgraceful charge swhich he brought against his
Majesty was. true, and that he was ‘prepared to
prove it. “He has up to the last moment justified
himself by bis statement that the chardes ware
trae, and vou "will remember that with refere
ence to the mm allegation, which - is° the most
important thing into which we have to inguaire,

the - vear
1880, in. the Island of Malta, ‘the man who is

now the Emg of England was united " in lawkal and

boly wedlock with the daughter of Sir Michael

Culme-Seymour; an “Admiral of the. British Navy,

and that thereafter, to wit, on the: 6th day of July,
1893, he who is now the said King of England., his
lawiul wife still being alive; did- enter' inté a’ falss
and bigamous marriage with "a' daughter of the
Duke of Teck: "And: this the defendant stands
ready to prove.” Gentlemen, it is difficult even in
my’ position to use language which sufficiently ¢on-

‘veys.one’s opinion of such'a defencs to such a charge,

and it is only hecause, having regard. to the natore of

the defence that I shall in & very fow sentences ¢call

your aftention to what evidence is before vou.: ‘The

defendant has suggested that he-has:some. nght“‘tb

call. upon: the :person defamed, because he is: the
King of England, to come down into this box anad

‘submit himself t6 sonie-questions that might be put

to:him by the defendant. Gentlemen, you again will

take it from'me the defendant has no such right. Ifthe

‘defendant i¢.prepared.to prove, as he by his plea said
‘he was, he must be prepared .to prove by emdence,

that he can adduce before a jury; and Iwill remind you
in & ‘moment-that-not . one-sibgle. question . has: bean

pub by’ the defendant by -way of cross-examination
‘to any’ ef theee withesses—who wére equally, in one:

SeHSe YNAnY of them, Gdefamed as much as his- Mazmty

-=t0 qualify, to:vary; still 1& te eehtmdmﬁ or ‘bree‘k

a =
- "

or.is {t trying flie defendant for a Iibeﬂeus ] down the. gvxdenee that , they: have gwen. “Gentlemen,

for one- moment lebins disregard. the: fact that this,

the King.
telling you,

the person:who-tomplains - may be put-into. the box

or-what -he suggests is -a- true, .statement;-

1 theréfore demand that | asking - questions of -a- witness, “whether: he - News of London informs us that the Kipg lands in
cauld- give -evidence -or. whether’ he ' could. not Indis with his wife. Will the nawaper kindiy tell us

‘The simple.question is.whether or not: vou {find thix

the King of his good name, fame, and reputeﬁen,_
by . the ‘publication’ of scandalous, ‘malicious, and
.| defametory libels.

from the rephca.taen ” in‘ the pleadings.). anﬂ&-
1 men, you: have. the information before.you-
glve-yonr a copy: of it. I will;not really insult. your the Foreman of the Jury rose and said —We' ﬁ.ml
intelligence. or insult your feclings by.reading:these him giilty on-all three charges, my Lord.

‘sanae for'the high as Yor the low, and peeple of credit

Malta at sl until the Admiral sailed on July 6, 1893,

.giris, nor one of them who is.alleged to have been &

the c¢h

no explanation. Youn know tha.t on tm:r eeca.slens,

13

if i wore untrue, is a gross and disgracelul hbdnps:m !

just before eﬂevember and December’ Euhhca.tmn,
i or It i e e
G m ec ]L » - B'
I tell.you, and. you. know it withount. mr ! ypen, Pﬁﬁtfals ?ﬁha sﬁgfmmﬁhmh he evidencs is Ieft
that'a man cannot, aceording to cur law, ' b y the delendant. - I have to ask you whether yo
state that which is untrue in fact, and. then ask:that ﬂnd him ghilty of publishing & roalicious libel aga.msh
hix Majesty ofnn November 28, and Wllsget?er yﬁu find
him guilty ublishing & malicions on Decem-
‘ber 19, and E ther you find bhim guilty of publishing
OL €& 5 malicions }ibel at a later period, following up that
is -evidence by ' which be had stated before, He said,—** The Dﬂﬂy

in order that he may éndcavour: to drag: -ont: a~true; -
deavour to prétend- that there ;

which wife? ” “Will yon be g to tell me

whether you think that he is guilty. of pubhsllmg the
defendant: guilty ' of -unlawtally | and . malicionsly 1ibel on e{i‘:}her of those dates? ..glglenﬂemen, 1 scarcely

devising and intending to injure, vilify,.and-prejudice’ think-you desire to retire, but if you desire to do.so
g 4 L you will, of .course, 49 £0. ‘I ‘am going to hand you
a copy -of the. information in which you will-find set
out. 1o ferms the libel charged. | s

.. ... VERDICT:“GUILTY.”.
will| “After about s nifnute’s deliberstion in the bcm

THis Lordship then vead extracts

E

words -again.: They charge his Majesty: with_having ' = The ASSoCIATE' then put the question formaly
in"the year 189C married. the. daughter of a British and the verdict was stated te be: lmmnmmm, on the
Aduyiral, and- that she bore children to him.: It is threecounts,.

couched in language as to which:I:restrain myself from | - THE SENTEKGE

expressing my opinior., I{ alleges that he.then acted ' “*The Yord “CarirJ GSTICE (the defendan‘b I:a.mg
12 a disgraceful manner by marrying his.present wife. Yisen from his geat) £aid =—Mr. Mylius, yon Have to
Well, gentlemen;:it is really 2 lamenfable thing that right fo say anything to me, but if you have any-
& man: shonld not only. publish it, ]mf, should come fthing fo say before.I pass senternce upon wyou-I. wﬂl

+ wral

. 2. }into Court; and. repeat the plea,.and say it is troe in  hear yon, but vou must direct it solely to that? .

The. defmdmi«-—liy Lord, I have mtde my prn-
test, and 1 have pothing more to say. = ..

The Loxp Crizr JUsTICE then pa:-:aed senbenee
amid perfeet silence, saying 2~

~BEdward Frederick Mylius, you ha.ve heen cennetﬂi
of the pubhea.taen against his Majesty the King of thre=
gross and infamous libels. You have charged him
with conduet which, if commitied by a.subaec{‘]t;:f the
positions in herlate Majesty’s Service: " The dsfendant Cro™n, would amount to felony according to the laws
seems to think nothihg of the wickedness of defaming : ©f England, and which any Christian gentleman or
those people as'1 have said, although ths eviderice ! yan of honour would condemn and dﬁSPISE- Xon
bas taken ‘two' hours to take down, we may state it ! ; have 2ccompaniéd these charges by gross and abusive |
in"althost three minutes. ‘A martiage-is. -alleped 4o | 120g03ge indicating the ‘hsgmmfﬂl nature” of the
have taken placs in Malta in the'year 1890 between i $000uct which vou have imputed to his Majesty. The
the then Duke 'of York (his present Majesty) and one { Libel suggests that this action of yours is designed to
of ‘the daughters’ of Sir Michael “Culiné-Seymounr. further some cause which is opposed to the Constitue
You have ‘had it now proved in“evidencé—and I |DOD established in these realms, and especially to the
tell you you must, in this case, as in all others, act'on | POSition of his Majesty. ~1f this be so, it is a gross
evidence-~vou'have had it ‘proved in evidence, that aggravation of your offence, for let me tell you—anld
his ‘Majesty was never.in Malta after the vear 1888 | i this Observation every person of honour will concar
until leng after his mml&ﬂ.e with the PI‘ESEHf} Queen. ~—that no canse can be advanced by the use 'ﬂf ﬁhﬁe ‘
Through all thase sreal's—-—at is not a ‘question of a

| scandalons and delestable weapons—the bringing of
month or a day-—from October, 1858, to July, 1893, 'Islanderaus and infamous accusations against hononpr-
his present, Majesty was never in Malta at all. “With | | able men and women, in Wha'te‘ T Staﬁm of Lie they
regard to the daughters of Sir Mickaal Culme-Seyniour, ma.y be.
that gallant officer has gone into the box and has told There is in your offence ancther circumstance
you the truth about that. This defendant scems to of grest aggravation—the “most ordinary investiga-
think that a jury are to disbelieve people upon their | ton, which any honourdble man would unquestion-
caths, because he chooses to say he wishes o asi some- :‘;;{ i!?:?g&:mmgi?];m;mrihm have Ehﬂ:? you
¢ 1y Sl FTO were
body else a questlen. The rule of our Co is the o5 u] d ot be true. The date at whzc]f amgdmm |
Séymour went to Malta was perieclly well It:netm, as
il -followed a great mational disaster. The most
ordinery inquiry would have shown you that voiu had
been made a party to the publication of m.taJneHs 2nd
scandaloustlies. I know not shether vou have been
the civil registry. They have gone.to the trouble of SIGNED DECILARATION BY THE
bringing these registers for your inspection, and of - | KING.
&8 lawful marriage there is not a2 trace, nor is there '
any entry which can peasﬂal} correspond to any] The ATTOBRNEY-GENERAL, rising again, said ~—Now
transaction of the:kind. ithat sentence has been passed in this case, there is &
Gentlemen, I do not propose to g{) through the | maticr to which I should like to refer, and which I did
other part of the evidence, material from some : D0t think your Lordship wonld have thought it right
points of view. It is not material for your con- { for me to mention until after verdict and sentence had
sideration as to what motive prompted the de-|been passed. 1 hold in my hands at this moment a
fendant to publish this Iibel. I agree with the | document under the band of his Majesty the King,
learned Aftorney-General that this prosecution is |from which with your Lordship’s permission I will
not to preceed against this man because he may have | read-
written this in antagonism to and with a view fo * ¥ am authorized by his Majesty to'state publicly
subverting the Gevemment of this country. At f ! that he was never married except to the Queen

the most solemn form, without: ham:ng -a. vestige,
or a . scrap, or.a aha.dew, of emdeneem supperb ef the

statement. - R
THE Evmmcz. .

|

c will

i -l.“ .-1 p

leela n:msb be justified accerdlng to therr
terms. Thlsh"belstat-es as you. will remember, :
the. specific fact of the marriage of the present King
to the - danghier of one who held one. of the: hiphost

are to. be believed unless eﬂdenee is given. to the
centrarv “The Admiral said he had’ two daughters.
The younger would. have been 17 in the year 1890,
and she died some five years la.ter. ‘She had lived
mth her sister at heme, in censtant irien dshlp, of
cenr"e, a.nd against her memory, if th.a story . were
true, very disgraceful charges were brought. This
partlcula.r gir]l, only 17 in t.he year 1890, lived in ker
father's family uxrtil she died, and her father bas
| said, and her only sisten has said, therﬂa not; a.ahadew
of truth in the charges. Is therc any fach of the
most {rivial character iwhich you would consider
proved by - the suggestions of *this defence ¥ The
other daughter, Mrs. Napier, has been bmught before
yeu. She, ‘of courst, kmew her dead atster well, and
she s3ys that she knows that her BJStQJ; never was
ma¥ried. And then yvou also know from the evidence
that Admiral Seymour and his family never went to

ordmary medns of protecting himself. There are,
alas' ¥ “In this"world, 100 many people willing to cir-
culate—aye ! amplify, even believe—s candalous stories
of this kind,axd it was 4o that vile class that you
appealed. The sentence I am about 10 pass upon von
is wholly inadequaie to {he offence, but Tortunately
this practice has not prevailed largely of recent yeats,
or more severe sentences would be passed. 1 have
considered whether I should treat these libels as
separale libels, as I might do; dut, bhaving regard to
the dignity of the law which I endeavour to ad-
minisier, 1 do not think it right to treat the ofience
as more than one out of many. ‘We know there were
hundreds, or thousands, of these scandalous publica- |
tions. 1 sentence you to the mazimum punishment
I can inflict if 1 do not treat the matter as n conseci=

tive ibel. I aentenee ‘you to 12 months’ impnstm- :
raent.

strangely enougk, the day on which his present
Majesty swas married, and the mother and two
daughters . went oub in 1893. . They paid other
visits to Malta, but neither his.Majesty, nor.the two

party to this marriage, was at Malta ab the time
alleged. Solittle'does this defendant seem to care abont.
evidence. The Crown has gone to the expense and
trouble——the expe.nse, of course, is mothing—of
bringing over all the registers. Ycu know that &
legal morriage in Malta—and it has never been
suggested that tliere ‘was other. than-a degal mar-

riage—has to be registered both in the church and ‘officers who had him in charge.-

' -l'l-'\.-'..-

-'"l'"li"rﬁ

acling uvnder ibe influence of others. This I do
knovw : that every honourable man and woman in the

another stage of the procee should you consider {aud that he never went through any ceremony
arge is established against him. that may be | of marriage except with the Queen. Angd further thay

civilized world wounld recoil with shame from the use

of such weapons against any one, and most of g1l
material. It is important to consider whether this hns Majesty wonld have attended to gwe evidence to
man was & mere dmmmy or messenger, or whether

2gainst his Majesty the King, 1o whom the people of
he had a great deal to do with the preparation of the

this Empire are devotedly attached, and who by his

greal posilion is to a large extent debarred from taking
libel. Yeu heard the co ondence read—of. which {La.w Oﬁeers of the Crown tha.t it would be uncon-
we have one side—which speaks in the clearest tones, | stitutional for him to do so. That statement, my

and ef which the defendant, Mylius, has given you Iﬂl‘d, is signed 'bsr the ng htmself.
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which time much new light has been threwn upon the career of Napoleon,
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THE KING'S HONOUR.

o “THE TIMES, THURSDAY, FEBRUARY -2, 1911.
defence that what he had said was true,” The]. .. .. . . = T L | n A wA ot .
prosecution, however, were not content to leave | TH JT THAM'_ES DRE ADNOUGHT_ . ) ST-“' 3 ANEES’S THEATRE

the matter thers, but would call evidence .
ittt — “l L

THEATRES, &.c. (:;:dnﬁﬁund);' *

DYNAMITE EXPLOSION IN | .
- DRﬁRY LANE THEATRE ROVAL.

utterly to refute these charges. The Sovereign

. R TNR B THR D 82 —~ NP R R - - Managing Director, Arthur Oolline,
had not the right to vindicate his charatter| yAUNCH OF THE THUNDERER. WIBY " FOR LTHE DEFENCE.” o a A e AT T iy 8% | TODAY. st 1.0, and EVERY EVENING, at 7.30.
by repudiating on oath before & Judge and jury | UL ST i O ST TR v BY ACE. We Masow. - ' 1 DAMAGE AND LOSS OF IAFE. . | . AT N s T st aA T
TRIAL OF MYLIUS FOR sny libellous statements made sgainst bim.j- .. .=, AT BLACKWALL. . . |HenryThresk .. .. Mr. GroRGE ALEXANDER| " . {FROM OTUR CORRESPONDENT.) ... . .. T WRURY LANE PANTOMIME
His incapacity was an absolute incapacity|{ =~ .. = e st i eecin €« |5tePhen Ballantyne 7T (M LysroNy Lvre =~} - . A SR S GEOBGE GRAVES DOLYLY CASTLES
for reasons of publi¢ policy, ‘and there had| The Thunderer, the first vésseél of the Dread- | Richard Hazlewood - .. Mr. Lesure Faser || A quentity of dynamite which was being :

EARRY LUPING 1 ANITA TDIR
BOX-OFFICE OPEN ATYL. DAY. ~Tels. 2588 (two Tines) Ger.

T XIS MAJESTY'S THEATRE.

never been any precedent for the calling of the | nonght type to be
Soveéreign into the witness-box. The other
witnesses, however, would be sufficient to show

built on the Thames, was

| Robert Pettifer .. Mr. SYDNEY VALESNTINE | transferred between & boat and some cars
launched yesterday afterfioon from the Black-

-Hubbard ..~ .. - J. Mr E.VIVIAX REYXOLDS { in ' Jersev Citv €x1 d yesterday afternoon.
Baram Singh .. e Jr. G. TREVOR ROLLER n Jersoy City exploded yesterday & or

'e '-..

VERDICT AND SENTENCE.

the groundlessness of the charges made. Vo= yard n fu]l ﬁ.mr., #ofmanythousands Stella Ballantyne.. ! .  Miss ETHEL IRVING “-.Ah‘mﬁ 20 men were kﬂlad and. a.t"_l_egit gﬁﬂ TOSIGHT %ﬁiﬁmﬁ 8
The following document signed by the Kin It would be proved that the ng Wwas hever Th? +. dxrect-oraﬁe Of _he. Thames Ir?nm.:’?ksé_ Mz, Pettifer oe . ee  Miss MABIE LINDEN . - people ‘?P‘.EI‘B,__ mjured, while thousands of win- |- - RIhSGperee
od A ’ Y . S in Malta in 1890 or at any time approaching Shipbuilding; and Engineering ‘Comp?:nyhad L e _— hdﬁWB throughout the lower. part. of .NBFF: York %ﬁiﬁ& - ee %@&W
was read by the Attarney-Generel in Court that period. Moreover the ladies of Sir M.|invited & large coinpany to witness the putting| When the curtain went down on the- first ach | City were broken. The city’s glass bill will Queen Katharine .. .. Miss VIOLET VANBRUGH

yesterday afternoon efter the defendant in Culme-Seymour’s family never went to Malta

. A . MATINEE Y WEDNESDAY and SATURDAY, 52,
afloat of the largest British battleship ‘that — 2 e
The King v. E. F. Mylius had been found guilty

of Mr. Mason’s new play it went down on|amount to st least £100,000. The shock of the
has yet left the slips on London’s:river. Apart '

till October or November, 1893, some months Mr. Ballantyne raving in drunken fury and

JAMES'S. ~ 3. GEORGE ALEXANDER.

. - Lo o Ny - s ia . T-
] ; | explosion was felt over o radius 'of 40 miles. S TO-NIGHT zn0d EVEEY EVENING, 8t & 30
and sentemced to 12 months imprisonment after the present King was married to the from the invited guesls, however, the promise | threatening violence to Mrs. Ballantyne, who | ; B THE wiiaons 1068 Lan LudiNCE,
p Queen. o Malta registers of marrisge had T SR e, UWOVOD, 6. promise JIOISEE0 L0 AIS. Dallaniyne, wic DETAILS OF THE ACCIDENT: . A new Piny by A. B. W, Moson,

for publishing criminal libels on the King :— been brought to this country, and not only |Of the-ceremochy had attracted to Cenninglhad & gun in her hand. The man was & | R Mr. Alred Bishop o U oon ALEEANDER. o entie

1 uthorized by hi jesty te | W8S there norecord of such a marriage as alleged, | 10WR 60 unusually large crowd of sightseers. |loathsome brute. The woman’s lifs with| - .- - o NEW YORE, FaB: 1.7 M E Vivion Depnolds | Sioggien Lyle

Am authonzed by his Maj : ‘o sia but there was no marriage of anybody of the | L1 streets outside the yard were cro ed with him had been slavery, degradation, physical| =~ The explosion at Jersey City occurred: at the{ & Miss IRVING.
publicly that he was never married except | pame of Seymour recorded in those registers. enthusiastic spectators. .- o EE :

;raﬁ;%wm:snayqu. o 2.30,
and - edns ¥ anrd _Bturdn‘.r- Unﬂﬂlﬂg- ¥
Boxofice. 101010, el su08emard.  sestsatat Libravies,

OF YORK'S THEATRE,
St Martin's-lane, W.C.

TaEY A:B-RANGE:M:Est. ‘| torture.- What ‘happened just after the Jersey Central Railway Pier. The estimates of

A most emphatic denial of the ramours ciren- _ {cuftain fell ¥ "Did she shoot him? Every-|the loss of life range from 12 to 25; while

lated about the previous marriage had been| - The hﬁsts' at the CEremony. . had made elﬂ- body hoped so. It would. of course ‘have been ! hundreds of Paapla were huwrt both in Jorsey GKE
given by Sir A. Bigge in a statement published | horate arrangements for ¥heir guests to ses| Cov OP by O3 GO, | - vl City and in New Vork by falli D &
in Reynolds’s Newspaper on Qctober 30, 1810, the launch. nngme stands hadgub: 0 erectod an act of seli-defence. Indeed, it was ha-rdly‘ vy ork by falling glass. Damag D Sols

to the Queen, and that he never went
through any ceremony of marriage except
with the Queen; and further that he
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pocket, and in his rage must ‘have killed the
woman if she did not get her shot in first—and

General, with great impressiveness, . cquarters
it is not the habit of playwrights to satrifice of the Department of the Fast also suffered in

said that the protection of the jury was sought was somewhat. marred by the discomfort the
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Everybody, then, was fully prepared to hesr considerable excitement apd anxiety, even.in.
what came out almost as soon as the curtain| localities so remote that the shock was not
;

Although before it came on for hearing
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of the interest taken in the hearing by all farniTe e o who unfortunately. has to o had been fo saob, vhad B o

which he and his family were at Malta, bear- The 0l e
ing out the Attorney-General’s opening state- | make use of an invalid chair, received the Arch-

ment. His younger daughter died in Novem- | bishop of Canterbury and Mrs. Randell David-
ber, 1835. She was never married, and he son, who was to perform the lavmching cere-

was quite sure she had never spoken to the mon M .
ne. Hi M . : ¥, on the éanopied platform that had. been
King. other daughter, Myrs. Napier, h erected by the pfow; £ Here @& distinguished

voars old. Sho had never meb him agein ‘il | EFOVP Of guests soon gathered. I.included

rosd says that a dozen Polish lebourers were
transferring dypamite from & car to & dynamite
boat when the explosion ocenxred. is boat
and two others which were near her—namely,
the McAlister and tughoat No.  28-have
entirely disappeared. Resides those who lost
thelr lives on these three vessels. there were
upwards of & -hundred-men working on the pier
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had been tried for shooting him, and.that she
had been acquitted. But what we wére not so
well prepared to 'learn was the ground of the
gequittal. It <was %6t the obvious ons of
justifiable homicide. No; Mrs.” Ballantyrie,
it seemed, had been found guiltless of hsr
husband’s death altogether. A gentleman
who had been with the murdered man on the

sections of the community. The Court was
crowded to its utmost capacity, and outside
its walls the proceedings were eagerly followed
in the evening papers, which published very
+ full reports as the trial progressed. The result
was mads known shortly before 3 o'clock in

O DO o : - KIGHILY, at 8.30.  MATINEE SATURDAYE, st 2.30.
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Tustic i a cial i n the Lord Chief Medical evidence was given to the effect Board of - Trade), Mr. C. F. G. Mesterman had " confessed himself to him as going about unloaded when the 4 ite bl Tha
Lo an Spe JUty i the Lor °L{ that Lady Culme-Seymour’s state of health (Under-Se v for Home Affairs). th Lopd | in fear of his life. He had a document in his ed when ine dynamite blew wup.
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but all aveilable places were ocoupied socon
after the doors opened at 10 o’clock, and there
was not even standing room for thoss who
desired to follow the proceedings. The Court,
which is one of the largest in the Royal Courts
of Justice, is severe in its simplicity. Its walls
are wamscotted hali-way up with ogk carved
m. Gothic fashion. Behind the Bench the
voyal Arms stand out in bold relief as the
only adornment of the Court, the ‘curtains
and hangings of which are of dark green.
Lhere was a large attendance of representa-
tives of the Press, many of whom were accom-
modated with seats behind those reserved for
counsel. In the Judge’s private gallery were
meny ladies, among whom was Mrs. Winston
Churchill. The Home Secretary, who followed
the proceedings throughout, sat in front of
counsel for the Crown, on the solicitors’ bench,
and beside him was Sir Chsrles Mathews,
Director of Fublic Prosecutions. Sir Arthur
Bigge, one of the King's Private Secretaries,

arrived just before the Court opened and
sat beneath the Bench.

THE DErFExDANT Myrius.

The defendant Mylius entered the Court
unobserved and took his place on the solicitors’
bench on the opposite side of the gangway
to that on which counsel for the prosecution
were seated. e is a young man, apparently
about 30 years of age, rather under the medium
height and with small features and black
hair. lIle was neatly dressed in black.

The dcfendant, who, despite the foreign
appearance of Lis name, speaks with an Fwglish
accent, conducted his case in person. He pre-
served his composure throughout the hearing,

and during the Attorney-General’s opening
speech was once or twice observed to smile.
He took but little part in the proceedings,
and refrained from ecross-examining a single

1 criminal informations filed by

to appear and give evidence. |

MES. Napier, gtgre next witness, gave evidence
i the same sense as that given by her father.
She spoke of her own and her sister’s move-
ments.@She certamly would have known if
her sister had contracted a marriage. Her
sister was never married.

Evidence was also given by Admiral Culme-
Seymour’s three sons in disproof of the charges ;
by Mr. Charles Walker, head of the Commission
and Warrant Branch of the Admirslty, as to
the movements of his Majesty ; and by Dr.
Azopardi, Crown Advocate at Malta, the last
witness speaking as to the absence of any
record of such a marriage as that alleged in
the marriage re%sters of Malts. |

Sir Arthur Bigge spoke to a statement
published in Reyno paper on. October 30,

s News
1910, which was an extiract from a letter
written by him, in which it was denied that the
King had ever been married to any one but the
present Queen.

The defendant did not eross-examine
these witnesses.

THE DEFENDANT S CONTENTION.

The defendant, who announced his inten-| beautiful grey

Mayor and the Sherifis of London in State,
Lord Brassey, Admiral the Hon. Sir E. R.

Fremantle, Sir William Colling Colonel Sir

Edward Ward, Sir Edward Henry, Sir Albert.

Spicer, M.P., Mr. R. Harcourt, M.P., Mr. Wili

| Thorne, M.P., 8ir Williaztn White, Mr. W.
! Whitaker Thom%sgn {Chairman of the London

County Couneil), Mr.Cyril Cobb (Vice-Chairman),
Sir John Benn, Sir Laurence Gomme, Sir Henry
Knight, Sir Charles Wakefield, 8ir R. Rogers,
and Mr. Deputy Millar Wilkinson. TheMayors
of the neighbouring koroughs were present in
their robes. There. wero also several Agents-
General for the Colonies and &. contingent of
officers from both the Admiralty and the
War Office. Just before 3 o'clock the Bishop
of Barking
service which is ordered for the lspnching
of his Majesty’s chips, which closes with a
benediction and a hymn, - '

| | ThHY LAWOH. .
It was estimated that the tide would be at

any of | flood just after 3. As the consecration service

finished the vessel lay on the cradles with only

her rudders touching the Thames. It was s
winter afternoon. With the

tion of calling evidence, then addressed the |SoD showing full above ﬂl}B reach into which the
Judge, contending that there were two methods ship was to meake her virgin voyage, the

only of procedure in such a case as this

11n] the Attorney-
General imsslf, usually called ex officio informa-
tions ; and, secondly, those filed by the King’s
Coroner and Attorney
King’s Bench Division at the instance of somse
private individual. The course sadopted by
the Attorney-General in laying an ev officio
information was correct if the

v were trying

him for seditious libel ; but if, as the Attorngy- 1

General had . stated, he was being tried for

| defamatory libel, it was an improper course,

| and the King ought to have appeared in Court
| and made aﬂidav%:s.

The Judge ruled against the defendant,
and, after some further argument, the ‘
Defendant contended that as the Court
refised to require the filing of the affidavits
or the sworn testimony of the King, it had no

by direction of the |iast dogsh

| There was a crash and c¢
 hydraulic rams. She did not move.

great waterway of our capital’'s commerce was

looking its' best. The. ‘huge grey -shell
towered -ebove us, the red ensign floating
from its stern.  Ewv ing was ready; the

ores had been knocked away; and
the signal was-given. /The slight lady standing
before the prow wished suscess to the ship and
her company. With & graceful sweep of an
embossed silver knife she severed the: cord
that was to. start, the Thunderer upen -its
waiery destinies. The great weights foll away.
_ nd creaking of the.cradles.
Then two ‘or three muffled sounds from the
A
moment of suspense and then the workmen
with their hands upon her sides shouted, ¢ She

' noves.”” . For a second the movement was not

perceptible. Then at 3.12 the great mass was
in slow motion. Rapidly it gathered way.

conducted the brief impressive

possession compromising certain Hindu sgitators
(he was an Indian civilian, and was shot in a
tent in Rajputana); he had seer a lean,
swarthy arm thrust under the tent that very
evening, Mr. Thresk, too, had seen the arm,
he said ; in short, his evidénce pointed to the
murder having been done by a native, and thus
Mrs.Ballantyne came to be acquitted. But we,the
audience, know guite well that Mr.Thresk never

eaw the lean swarthy arm. We know that,

hke the mongdose in the story, the arm Mr.
Ballantyne thought hé saw was not a real arm,

but 2 mere delusion. of dipsomania. We also

know that Mr. Thresk had been in love with Mrs.
B&H&niggm before her marriage, had been horri-
fied to find her being ill-treated by her husband,
and would do anything for her sake. Evi-
dently, then, Mr. Thresk has committed per-
jury .for her sake.” And it was gratuitous
perjury, seeing that if it had never been uttered
the woman would have been safe of acquittal
on the actual facts.

These little fragments of two-year-old his-

tory are pieced fogether by degress in the
Sussex e of Little Beding, whither Mrs.
Ballantyne has come for peace and oblivion

of the past. Oblivion, however, is what she
cannot get.. For she has fallen in love with
the Squire’s son, yo Dick Hazlewood,
and he with her, and the brother-in-law of Mr.

Hazlewood, senior, happens to be & solicitor}
with a professional eye for flaws in evi-!

dence, and, consequently, with
about the justice of Mrs. Ballantyne’s acquittal.
Neither old Hazlewood nor his legal brother-

m-law would like young Dick to marry the

lady untid this matter of herinnocence has beent
cleared up beyond all doubt, and accordingly
they concert a little plot for getting Mr. Thresk
down to Little Beding, where tho solicitor
subjects him to a“severe intérrogation. Thresk
s11:ks to his story; and the solicitor is satisfied,

though it is quite plain to us, from Thresk's'
I 1s not the truth.;

demeanour, thet his story
We are all beginning to long now for the scene
that will clear everytling up, the.scéne-i-faire,
which of course miust be a private conversa-
tion. between Thresk and Mrs. Ballantyne.

men enga%egi in the work were sliding

cases In w the dynamite was packed down

an inclined plane. Other men were. stationed
by the slope who were supfinsad to guide the
packages and.-to prevent t ]
down with
dent’s theory isthat one of the men so employed
might have lost his grip :
The pier at that time was packed full of freight,
mostly steel-mill products, and owing doubtless
to the solid nature.of these goods
daone to them was not heavy.
m s f _
were cut by broken glass and were treated at
% emergency hospital on reaching New York
by, . | -

em from slipping
ous foree. The wvice-presi-

on one of the. cases.
damsge

Many passengers
-boat ‘which was passing at the time

LONDON, TILBURY. AND
SOUTHEND RAILWAY,
| WA

- PROPOSED TRANSFER TO THE
MIDLAND COMPANY.
A provisional agreement has been entered
into between the London, Tilbury, and Southend

Railway Company and the Midland Railway

Company for the transfer of the entire under-
taking of the London, Tilbury, and Southend
Railway, Company to the Midland Company.

The consideratior for the transfer will be the

1ssue to debenture and preference stockholders

grave doubis in the London, Tilbury, and Southend Rail-

way Company of stock of the same dencmina-
tion in the Midland Railway Company pro-
ducing an equal return, and ths issue to the
ordinary. stockholders of £240 Midland Rail-
way 22 per cent. -cansolidated -perpetual pre-
ference stock m exchange for each £100 of
London, Tilbury, and Southend Raillway
ordinary stock. T R

The agreement is subject to the approval of
the shareholders of both companies and Parlia-
ment.

“CONCERTS ™ and “ VARIETIES ® will b
found on page'L

. -

ARTHUR PLAYFAIR
DION BOUCICATIT
EDMUND MAURICE
) "DAWSON MILWAED
WATINYE EVERY WEINESDAY and SATURDAY, at 2.15.

AVOY THEATRE. Miss MARIE BREMA'S Seasan,
Under the Patronage of HB.H. PRINCESS CHRISTIAN.

TONIGHT apd SATURDAY EVENING, at S,
S MARIE
TO-WIGHT, at &.

DING BELLS
Miss BE¥YMA will sing
ROLE ‘in BOTH
the Two Operas will be given
DANCE S
Arranged by Miss Mearle Brema.
Mr. H. B. IRVING.

BREMA i} o

W s e peglorman e of
Two QOperas
POMPADOUR.

OQIERAS,

and

THE PRINCIPAL
A WATER

Box-office 10 to 10,

UEEN'S THEATRE.
EVERY EVENING, at 8.15.

MAT
WEDNESDAYS and SATURDAYS, at 230,
5y Gearge, Placell sod A f
B d
trnmy A ]E.ge W. Hasunaén n
“IT 15 NOT MUCH LESS THAK THE
FINEST STORY IN
Charjes Wogsn

A B W.

ovel “mmmw

THE WQORLD.”

 Miss STELLA PATRICE CAMPEELY,

- Boxwofficeopen 1040 10. -Gy, 94387,

Tele,, 3815 Gerrxml
SI‘M.DI.

AUDEVILLE THEATRE.
Under the Maparement of Messts. 4. znfl S. GATTL

- TO-N EHI.-:t 8.15. AR
3fr. GEDRGE ZDWARDES'
Musicat Prodoction in T'wo Acts:--
in the TRAIN.

Fﬁﬁ'@ﬁﬂﬁ"eﬂm IFrsn™ |
 MATINER EVERY WEDNESDAY, at 215,
POLLO THEATRE, Shaftesbury-svenue, W
Lowenield,

SV

Henry
TO-DAY, 230 Tgris%‘ D:iﬁ THORS.. SATH. .
- - lﬂ > - - » »
in Vandeviil .Burles” g..c;tr umic(lnarteﬂ:a.
N vandge ES.r Ji1i=s, S T0N
TRIAL,” & PELISSIKI'S POTTED PAGEANT. Tel, 3243 G.

Sale Propristoe.
Lessee and NManar

T,
at 2.30,
a2 “ VOICE

S0, when everybody ab Mr. Hazlewood’s
has gone to bed save Thresk, busy over his
papers, we all know perfectly well what those
taps at the window mean. Of course it is
Mrs. Ballantyne, come to clear up everything.
Thresk comes ab once to the point. He knows
the truth, and she knows that he knows it.

jurisdiction, and he refused to proceed further. |Mrs. Randall Davidson swung the decorated
The Judge reminded the defendant that he | Pottle of wine against the ‘stem and the
had expressed an intention to eall evidence. Thunderer glided onwards to the element that
The defendsnt replied that the King was the ‘15 to be her home. It was an impressive
witness he wished to call. . |moment. The vessel gathered momentum at
This evidence being disallowed, the Judge |2 great pace, and as she entered the water she
proceeded to sumn up. At the conclusion of had a speed of 10 miles an hour.

witness. Nor did he call any witnesses on his
own behalf, though he desired to call the King.

his, however, was ruled out of order by the
Judge.

PRINCE OF WALES THIEATRE.

Vaoder the Mamagement of TFrank Cuoxom.
AT mmmhlﬁam?‘ S production
{B}: armangement with Charles Frohmani,
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This week only. Tﬁ’lEﬂ Dailiy, at 2 and 8.

Tel., Ger. 3344.
ToE HEARING.

When the Lord Chief Justice had taken his

place the defendant first asked for the return |ipe summing up the jury, without leaving the| W1th the disappearance of the huge hull And now another person must know if,| FINAL PERFORMANCES SATURDAY NEXT. FEB. 4. N EW THEA Tﬁ' S Charlem Wenby, SoFard 2473,
of his private letters which had been seized ; and, box. found a verdict of Guilty on all three !from the foreground the bands played * Rule | her future husband, Dick. She mgst (f:?nfess THE BLUE BIRD. Io-dey, at 32_.?‘“‘1 8. Under the Janagement

on theJudge’s stating that he could make no order cha;'ges. Britannias ” and everybody “theered, yet it everythung to him. ,;Bélt sae Is so afraid o osing With & new 2 %ﬁme?ﬁ&& INES ULIA NEILSON and FRED TEREY,
at that time, he next inquired whether the assed the | Seemed that the vast majority were too im- | 121ck that she cannot doit. Then, says Thresk, -

The ILord Chief Justice then
maxrmum sentence he could mflict if he did not
treat the hbels as consecutive—namely, that |
of 12 months’ imprisonment.

TO-XIGHET (Thursdas), at 8, will be prodosed
O G e R Py be P
| MATINEE EVERY WEDNESDAY zad SATORDAY. at 2.20.

' QTRAND THEATRE, Aldwych. Tel 3830 Gerr,

Ihing was present. He demanded his Majesty’s
presence on the grounds, first, that every accused
person had the right to be confronted with his

I must tell the truth, confess that I committed
perjury at the irial, and take the consequences.
Then aifterwards he and she can go away and

“ AMAZINGLY BEAUTIFUL."-—Punch, i910.

WEDKRISDAY EVENING NEXT. Feb. 8th, 2t 7.50 o'tlock
{subszequent c¢venings at 8)

ressed to cheer wildly. There seemed such
ittle water room for the ship in the reach.

Would the great check hawsers hold her ?

F |

accuser in Court ; secondly, that no action for Two of them seemed to part. Only one |Patch up some sort ol a life together. For he L aﬁimimm of Englich Lite, Mir. Arihar By oo ¥ HVENING, &b &30,
libel was usnally taken wit{lhut the prosecutor’s The Court then rose, s . remained. It beld. The ship was Stgpped, still loves her. The woman is grateful to him by Charles Mekvos. LAST THREE aGHT e O B s rwoRMANCE.
being in Court where the jury could see him - m{f-;ﬂun report of the trial is published on pp. 6 and then veered a hittle to the tide. Almost ;fzr ti}:s’ but ‘13:'3;1?};1 :cl(;?; %;Eﬂl‘iggﬁ-mg?h e E m‘%ﬁ tgﬂﬁﬁsv}mﬂm azauds. M. LAST TWO MATS,, TO-DAY andgSAT., at 2.30.
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